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Reel # 2

"26 July 1365

((Reels #1 and #2 “overlap”))

TRAHSLATION

SAVCHENKO (A SAVCHENKO) ((vas)) Chairmar of the KGD in Mondaviez
((the doldavian SSI)).

e was in dHoldavia.

You are certain.

Yes, absolutely.

You know his first nanme (imya):

Ro, I do not remember.

I know == {{(he is a)) general.

SAVCHENKO -~ he was in lMoldavia,

He vas, ((wait)) one minute, SAVCHENKO was after BERIYA; SAVCHENKO
was at one timc-Deputy {(inister)), here, after BERIYA, he was a

Deputy ((iinister)) for us ((AVD)).

¥here.

In the MVD, in the MVD, the VD, he was a Deputy ((dinister)).

And, to my thinking, there even was some period, vhen SEROV canme,

he was under SEROV, and then he removed him and he was for many
years, in recent years he has worked all of the time in Moldavia, as
Chairman of the XGD ((there)), ves.

You know this exactly:

Yes; that SAVCHENKO has been in Moldavia all these yearé,;exactlx,
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D.

Let us suppose that there was still another (yeshche odin) SAVCHENZO.
Preciscly this SAVCHEN:O, vho at one time was Chief of the First
Diréctoratc, Chairnman of the KGE in Moldavia.

And I do not inow any other SAVCIENIO.

Do you know sone other SAVCUHENKO:

I do not Lnow.

I thinl that this is that onc wio at one tine was in the Ukraine

({thc Uxrainian SSR)), = Minister,

How we arc talking about that one who was in the Ukraine and that oae

vho was chief of Intellijence, and so forth.

This one; he is in Moldavia, until recently (do poslednego vreneni)

in Moldavia.

I simpiy am asking, in a friendly way, are you certain of this or not.
it 1s-precise1y this SAVCHENKO {((vhom)) I have in mind.

I now am asking: Is there another SAVCHENKO there.

I do not know, I do not know. e e
Have you ever heard of another Lt Gen (Genmeral-leytenant) SAVCHENSO?
I not (ne)... this one who.((is)’ in Moldavia, Chairman of the KGB.
I‘sihply am asking, have you ever‘bgard_éf another Lt Gen SAVCHENXO:

I do not know.

I do not remember.

Let us assume that the SAVCHENKO who was chief of Inteliggence and .
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A.

.Ivan Tikhonovich, wvho also at one time was a KGB employee_and at

Yoldavia, ((that)) his true first name (nastoyashcheye inya) ((is))

Sergey Romanovich....
I do not know.

...Licutenant General....

v e o e £

Lieutenant General. ...

All the trouble ((is))} in the following, you understand - you
already have repoeated (povtoryayete) this several times and yoﬁ

say that he was Hinister in the Ukraine, and so forth.

You Enow thnt in Yoldavia, the Mdinister for State Security or the
Chairnan o! the Comnittee for State Security,rin ﬁour time and ROW ==
to the present day -- is (sidit), or, in any case, last year, was:

Lt Gen SAVCHENXO, Ivan Tikhonovich.

(1G)... SAVCHERKO, what his first name ((is)) I do not know.

But I do not know his first name.

You see, I want to say, when you are not certain or do not know....

({Interrupts)) So, but nore I do not know the first name; I anm

saying, SAVCHENKO.... X

You say that that SAVCHENKO who previously was in the Ukraine {({and})

then was chief of Intelligence, now he is Minister in Moldavia....

in Holdavia, yes, this one.

But I want to tell you that there is another Lt Gen ((SAVCHENKO)) and
not this SAVCHENKO, but ((another)) SAVCHENKO; I have given (nazval)
you both correct first names; in Moldavia, the Chairman of the KGB
whom you know as this one, the otﬁer SAVCHENKO,.whosevname ({is))

~—SEGREF——
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Taerefore, I am asking you whether you have heard something inté#ésiing; :“

with reward....

B. ((Interrupts)) SAVCHENIO == that is the last naze (familiya), and

that is what I said.

N
3
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A. Tae question is (stoit) in the following: that ~- you se¢ == it is
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hard to believe that a person -- as they say -~ who worized there 11
years eitier tries to say that he does not know somethinz or wants

to show that he lLnovws.

B! Xo, what I know, I tell, only vhat - I know.

A. BDetween us, the SAVCHEXIO who was in the Ukraine, in Intelligence

and so forth and so forth, Serzey Romanovich, everyone (vse sobaki)

in the vhole world i:nows hin.

B. ¥Well, tell ((me, if it is)) no secret.

e

A. Everyone also knows that SAVCHENYO whom you do not Lnow - or wish
to say that you do not know -~ because his name is everyvhere in the

pewspapers, without any cover; the questior is (stoit) in the

B L L IR

following: that, you understand, if you do not know vhat happened
with the SAVCHENKO who was chief of Intelligence, etc., if you do

not know that it is precisely he in MHoldavia, then pleagé do not

e e -

say....

B. {{Interrupts)) I am telling you what I know, as (kak) I Xnow.

¥hy do you pose the question so.

A. I pose the question so, because there are two SAVCHENKOs, énd
{(it was)) not that SAVCHENHKO of vwhom you speak that was in Moldavia,
but gquite another, and I want to pin down (podvesti) here that you as )
an employee of 11 years must know the other; wio also is a lieutenant .

S general, ((and)) why you do not know hinm.

—SEORE]
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@ I heard the last name (faniliya), and ((that is)) all. P 'u};;

A, 1If you have heard this last nane (familiya), then you must have

heard the last name (faniliya) of that one a hundred times nore.

B. HMaybe I did hear ((it)), hut I do not Inow.

I an tellin~ you that I do not now and that neither one of (ni odin

s
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iz} the SAVCHINLOs ever was ny chief, ever.
"A. He stood closer, closer to the Sccond Chief Directorate than this one.
B. Not one of ny, of these SAYCHEIKOS wvas ny chief.
iy chicf was FEDOTOV, SIUDNYAXOV, GRIDANOV; I an saying ((that))
these ((were)) the big chiefs.
A, I do not think that you are trying to understand pme well,
B, I am trying to understand you well.

How is this == I am not trying to understand you well.

It is in my interests {(Eto v moikh 1hteresakh).

A. 1 am trying to explain to you that if you, as an enployee who wdrked
((there)) for 11 years, knowv the SAVCHENKO who was in the Ukraine,
who was chief of Intelligence, who then found himself with neither

business nor position, what happened to him, then you nédre him,

((say)) that he ((is a)) Minister in Moldavia.
I am telling you -= and this ((is)) established by the facts, even

Soviet newspapers, including the names, et¢. etc....

B. Of course, . : T i . - 1

Deputies are elected, there ((are)) Soviets (tam sovety)....

A. ...Apother person, but not this person.

¥y question: What do you know happened to the SAVCHENKO who was

chief of Intelligence:

B
- i
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the liVD, that there was a SAVCHENIO, the nane SAVCHENKO,_General )
SAVCHENKO was chief ¢f Intclligence and then SAVCHENIKO, séfore this'
SAVCHENHO, supposedly, was, well, a Minister in the Ukraige; thét
this SAVCIHENKO ((is)) Chairnan of the KGB in Moldavia. |

That is all I Xnow about SAVCIEKKO.

VWhich SAVCHENKO: !

You made this cor-::lusion yoursclf, or yvou knew {{this)) when you

were working.

{(Interrupts)) Well, wvhen I was working, I kmew; here I heard a

little bit, here a little bit of something.

From vhere (1G).

Because each person, Soviet, who works in intelligence, in counter-
intelligence, especially in rccent times, he knows the difference
exactly and he knows both SAVCHENKOs from top to bottom (kak

obluplennyye).

I think not (Ya ne dumayu), because....

Both of them are lieutenant generals, both are lieutenant generals,
both are connected with intelligence and counterintelligence.

So, the question is (stoit): either you were there and must xnow

exactly, or you werc not there and do not know.

I said what I know.

¥e will say this: that I am saying what I koow....

0f course....

1 certainly am not trying to contradict the facts, to tell you .

éomething superfluous or to wr?ng out something unusual; I am saying

—— SERREF—

I know, as I told you, that there wvas a SAVCHENKO... in the KGB,L.i o
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A,

In fact, facts.

And I am telling you that I did not xnow this....
((XG = A and B speax at the sane tine))
...To explain these facts articulately.

You nmay (mozhete) know millions of other thinns wvhich I do not know,
But I know millions of things which you do not lmnow,

Well, what do you vwant from ne.

Tell ((me)), please, that a person -- if he had worked 11 years,

knows GOGLIDZE, MASLENNIKOV....

((Interrupts)) 1 heard.

I do not know, I do not know, but I have heard the namz.

... Hust know SAVCHENXO, Ivar Tikhonovich, also.

VWorking in the Second Chief Directorate, even if you did not write
any kind of reports (( letters” - pis‘ma)) to him, probadbly some
kind of papers (bumagi) came from hin every week.

I do not want to tell you....

((Interrupts)) ({I did not see any)) papers over SAVCHENKO's

signature {za podpis'yu SAVCHENIO).

If you did not see ((such papers)), then again there is (stoit) a

big question: were you there at this time:

__The whole question lies in this, =~~~ = L

I am not trying to go into something deeply (zalazit' kuda-to gluboko);
I simply am taking those persons and_flgues vho are so outstanding
{kotoryye prosto s nog sshibatel'nyy) ((that)) one cannot be mis=

taken; a person who....

__SEGRE—




Five minutes ago....

although ((we both are speakinr)) Russian.
We are talkinz in two diffcrent lancuaczes.
You want me to understand, you want ne to ;o by the samc nethod of
thought as jyou do.

I cannot; I an going as I can.

That vhich I have here ({D points to his head)), that which I

renenber, that wvhich I Inow.

Let us return arain to one small question.

You affirnmed (utverzhdayete), only several minutes ago, {((that))
having gone to work in the NGB or the LVD in Harch 13533, you received
for some tize {(nckotoroye vremya) a basic pay {(oizlad) of 1,700 rulles,
plus, ((for)) rank =~ 3500 rubles.

I do not want to accuse you of lying or of lics or of something e¢lse,
but all of this contradicts the facts.

In the KGB «= on, the MVD, at that time -= they already were not
receiving ((pay)) for rank in larch, aad thercfore you could not have

received money ((ikh: den’gi)) for rank when you started work (postupil:

I know tanat they did not receive {({pay}) for rank for a year (v
techeniye goda) and {(then)) they began to receive ({Pay)) for rank
again, and ({that is)) all.

¥hen, what dates, I do not remember.

Understand ((me)); this is no explanation: "When, vwhat dates, I do

not remember...."

({Angrily)) But I cannot give you ({the dates)).

And if I do not know, I do not know, I do not knoi.

Nowwu have said that you do not know,

E

{(Interrupts)) I said that they gave ({pay)) for ranmk, then thei
stopped giving ((pay)) for mnk, and then again it was returned '§~

(vernulos') anew.

s oa g
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(ave received({pay) Yy for rankbecause -t thistine-they al
vere not paying ((for ramk)).

They already were not payinz,

¥Well, then, they did not pay for a yvear, and then thoy began again R

to pay for rank.

You told me that you received 1,700 ((rubles)), plus 300 for rani,
I asked you three times: ‘'Are you certain.”
Yes.

Exactly,

Of course, I am certain... later ({they began to give)) nme again

1,700 and 500..

We are not talking of later, now.

I am saying that in March you began work and you told me that your

“irst pay was, as a case officer, 1,700, plus 500, for rank.
In March and April, etc. == I do not want to say uvntil when —- they

were not paying ((for rank}).

. But how strange you are (No, kakoy zhe Vy strannyy)'

But I do not want to deceive you —= I received ({pay)) for rank,
they receive 1,700 for position (za dolzhnost') and 300 for rank;
{{wait)) one minute; I a=m not dececiving you, 1,700 for rank as a
case officer, that is, 1,700 for positlon, basic pay; 500 —- ((for))
rank (pogony).

For a period of about a vear I did not receive this 3500 for rank;

I received only the 1,700 plus longevity pay (vysluzhnyye) -= this

longevity (vysluzhnyye) ((pay)), secrecy {({(ray)), and so forth.

I have no intention of deceiving you.

We were saying that you started (postupili) in March and immediately
they pgid you 1,700; I am not posing a question about this money;

1,700 rubles was the basic pay of a case officer.

-——=3ORET—
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© But the important fact is ((only)) .in that ther did not pay me for

It was and is.

True.

It was; and, at onc time, they were payinz for ran':t.
They paid a lieutcnant 300; cveryone hnows this; and {{they did so))

in the Arny, also.

For a scenior ((licutenant)), GO0O.

‘This ((was})) usual (Eto kal obychno), yes, yes.

But the question is (stoit) ((in that)): tney already vere not

paying ({for rank)) in March.

But, you see, you... such hooks you put ocut (taZziye kryucholi stavite)i
This is not a hook....

((Interrupts?) It is a hool:.

...It is a fact which, you understand, you could in no way get around.

rank for a year and ((then)) again ({(paid me}) 1,700, 500 and
longevity pay {(vysiuzhnrye).

Vell, but when, what, well, I do not remember. - - o

In any case, a person == if he really came from the Navy, where he i

received. ...
{(Interrupts)) there, for rank, yes....
...And now he had come here, perhaps his ((pay)) for position ((is))

higher, but he will remember very well ({that)) they do not pay hin
for rank. '

PR




~you nor your colleagues before-you, here are questions ((which)y =

v .

somchow ((are)) not what you want, to =e such questions....

‘ {({(XG - A and B speak at the sane tine))

...%ell, I did not even pay attention to monéy.

3
i
1
:

You asked me -= ((vait)) one ninute, excusc me -- you asked me: but
you asked ne how nuch is (budet) the tasic pay (ozlad}.
I said: no.

¥hy-
A. I did not asi nore.

B. No, {((wait)) one minute, buy why.
And do you imow why.
Recause at that time it was not (ne stoyal) a question of money.
At that tinme, it was not important ({ did not play a role” - roli ne

igral)) for me.

A. I certainly am not posing a question about money.
Whether it wné or was not important. i

I asked you two or three times and you repeated,

B. 1,700, 500, plus ((pay for}} secrecy, there, etc.

A. If you began (postupili) in larch you could not have received ({pay))

for rank. g.;

B. Well, then... well, if they were not giving it from thevt;ﬁe (é

momenta) of STALIN's death, then I began to receive ((it)) after a

year. o . : | o _i:
For a year they did not pay it. 4 : . }‘ '
1,700, 500 and ((pay for)) secrecy, longevity. ‘

. :
DU RPN

"A. Let us say so!

. “xv'lﬂb
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everything-you-are-saying-looks-like ~the-truth~{{trerr-tran-try.

to nake sense and truth Qut of your statcménts)).
Yes, and I ((am trying)} to say only thc.trufh (eye).
Ah, you are trying.

Well, I am trying.

It does not turn out that way; they stoppcd paying nof only after
STALI¥, but at some other time,

You, having -.orked there, must know this.

One can in no way disrcgard this.

I certainly do not deny the fact, we will not speair with exactitude
(tochno), ((of)) how much they were paying and to uvhom for secrecy,
for langdage, for longevity, eté.

It is not so important; a person can forget, ((whether)) they paid
him 10 or 13% and some kind of increment (nadbavka) for language,

for secrecy or for longevity, etc.; but when they took away ((the

‘pay)) for rank -- SO -- this is very semsitive (chuvstvitel'no).

For the officer it was very sensitive and very important....
((XG - A and B speak at the same time))

For you, this, you say that this had no significance; O.K;, s0;
but for the ordinary mortal officer, you know, if a person is a
colonel, this right away....

1,300....

ves. 1,300 rubles,

Of course; with longevity ((pay)) (s vysluzhnymi)....

[P
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B. ...This then rues to 1,600... well, 1,G00. ’ I

A. Therefore, for ({(this)) one reason only, I have posed this question.

e dvin s

st ot

B; I do not renember when,
I tell you that they paid me 1,700 as:a case officer, 500 -~ for
rank,
Was it a yéar;
In the beginning, a year, whether at the end of 1333 or the beginning
of 1954, but perhaps you are right, from the bherzinning of 1953,
right fronm the morpent, for approxinmately a year they were not paying
for ranic. |
Then again they began to pay for ranii, {({(Pauses))
Look, you are building on this some kind of (1G) that I did not

exactly say this, this.

A, Vell, you see, they do not forget such things...
In this question ({therec is)) no exactness, because I am trying to

get at only the fact itself: you said that vhen you went to work

you received ({pay)) for rank, but at this time they were not paying
{(for rank)).

I can in no way understand how you could have received ({(it)).

That is my question (Vot moy vopros).

I thipk that this, such a simple....

B. For a year (Na protyazhenii goda) I did not receive ((pay)) for rank
({Laughs}); the rest {((of the time)), I received ((it)).
¥hen did X ﬁot receive ((it)): ‘ | ; ] . :
I do not remember. . e _2‘ '  . B

But all ((personmnel)) did not receive ((it)), not only I.

A. The same question.

o

0f course, in common life ((and)) work, perhaps it is not so

gyt

important about SAVCHENKO,

Qranece
il d s
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' for you — tho, as is sald, WBFked there — ((to know that there;are)

two SAVCHENZOs is the sane, everyone knows, it is the same as kﬁowing

GRIDAN(GV «- the sane, the sane.
{{In a low voice)) Ho.
Absolutely the sane.

{({In a low voice)} VNo.

And you, vhen you are. talking about one and you nake a nistake -- let
us say, you nistake the name and so forth, you do not lnow another,
but vou do not &know another -- it is in no way wnossible to believe
that a person wihno had worked ((therec)) 11 years would not knovw,
because he also ({i.e., the other SAVCIENIOQO)) is a licutenant general
and a big wheel (bol'shaya shishka).

One can in no way disregard ({(this)}.

Excuse me; may I tell you one thing: I began to work, I came as

a case officer, I worked (rabotayu) 2s a case officer im 1333, 1954,
1955, 1956, and —- excuse me for the vulgar expression -- I needed
to know SAVCHENKO, Marshal TIMOSHENKO and someone ({else, like them))
as I needed to know my ass (mme do zhopy bylo SAVCHENKO...) ((L.e.,
it was absolutely unnecessary)}).

For me, I came, I began (nachinayu) to work. .
Later, later, I became deputy chief of a section (otdeleniye); wvhen
((z)); from 1958, it was important for me here to whom, in what

name, to write a paper (bumagu pisat’), to whom, something else.

But working as a rank and file employee, for me it was, ah....

I agree. . L p .

That you had mo great intergst....

Yes, and not only ((no great)) interest; even....

flell, it was remote (nedosyagayemo).
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Inaccessible (nedosyagayemo).

The problem is in that he of vhom you are speaking is not ((there)),
but the one (tot) who is working there 25 years and vho is there
today you do not know.

This is the problem {(Vot v chen vopros).

You understand.

Because if you were wvorking thcre,'you would tell ne now exactly
whaf the second SAVCHENHNO did and, immediately, the difference

between them, because everyone (lzazhdaya sobaka) knows.
#

inow one SAVCHENKO, to nmy thinking, this is ({the only)) one,
perhaps, perhaps I am mistaken here {({vhen)) I give you the positions

(dolzhnosti) in which both woried, perhaps.

((in Inglish)}} No, no.

They both were working all of the time in different ((positions))
and ({(in Enzlish)) no connections,

Of course, by way of work there were ((in English)) connections,

but this SAVCHENKO of whom I am speaking had, had aore business with
the Second Chief Directorate than with the First,

Ve will return to this in due time.

Good.

As you wish, . e
I want, I want now (kak raz)....

{{(Interrupts)) I did not write to anyone, I did not read papers
over the signature of SAVCHENKO....

One minute, one minute, one minute, one minute.... R

((Tries to speak, but B interrupts))

May ((I)) say?

A Y A s bt o e B g sl s s s
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B. ((le is thinking hard.)) I tain: ((that)) under (u) SEROY, under
Ivan SENCV, a deputy vas... SAVCIENIO... {((he thinks acain))
SAVCITNHO,

Yell, you understand, it Jdid not hasnen thzt I (ne prikbodilos’ :cne)d
associated {((vith hin)).

Ho.

I do not know, <o not hnow, I <o not unovw, I do not rcmember, I
do not remenmber.

I an afraid to say anythin” (Poyus' chto-to shazat'); I do not
reoenher,

I do not vant ((to)).

A. You sec, this cuestion ({is)) so0 «= as it vTere «- sinple, vhen
everyone (kazhdaya sobalia) nows these two people, especially in
the XGBZ, beginning from tae saall ({(i.e., lovly)) and up to the
great; they have beensorizing (ratotayut} there a lonr time now,
and they have the sane nanes -- only different ((first names and))
patronynics; they have the same raniz (=vaniya), they have the sanme
rani:.

And, of course, vwien you as a person, you have come here, etc., and
you talix about one -- let us say, they made a mistake, they put
simply SAVCHEXRXO in this place, vhere the other ((is)); but, not —
knowing about the other == it certainly is almost iupossible to
believe that you worked there such a loagz tine, 11 years.

Because without knowing this person (bez znaniya etogo cheloveza),

it is in no way possible.
B. Well, I do not know.
I am telling you what I hknow,

((That is)) all.

A. He was not ﬁnder some kind of great (velikaya) cover at that {v svoye).

-qs;=§%Q$E¥=========
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‘About the Moldavian, of wvhom I am speaking, but not that une of vwhom

...Tine he was... in the Central Comnittec of the Comnunist Party

of the Soviet Union (TsX iPSS), which everyone also mew there, nand

s ot e

he came nere, ({vhere)) also everyone knew hin,
Kow, he is the Chairman of the IGB of the !Moldavian SSR. :

In any cveant, he was ({(there)), a year ago, as far as we know. :

He has heen (sidit) therce in loldavia nany years.

And it is thourht (schitayetsya) that he soon will leave.

e ((is))} in such a trap (zagon), abtrap {fi.e., he has bkcen '"stuck
away' or “pizeon-holed")).

well, (Vot, vot), he must ((zo)) on pension.
You arec saying this about yvour (o svoyen) SAVCHIIIHO; I am talizing....

About the lloldavian,.

you are speaking....

IS
B3
3
&
i
3

But I do not kpnow the first name, patronymic.

SAVCHENKO, General SAVCHENXO.

...And therefore it is rather difficult to say ({vhether he is)) in
a trap or not in a trap; perhaps that SAVCHENXO vho was in intelligence

is in a trap, or maybe they threw him out long ago.

[
<.

You must know better about this.

I have in mind the Moldavian ({SAVCHENXO)).

I have in mind that one who was in intelligence and was in the Cr -lg
Ukraine, ‘
But that SAVCHENKO, of whom you know absolutely nothing =- he ({(is))

Chairman in Yoldavia, but not that ome of whom you were speaking in

the beginning and several times later.

—3ERET———




those people who wefe talzing with you, vhen 1t iéiknowﬂ?§§;
certainty, it is 1002 clear as in broad daylight tiat it is not
that SAVCIHERLO, but the other you do not know; it is hard to belicve
that you vourself were there.

({in English)} You see.

YWell, sce, see.

I am saying ({it)) as I remenber and thaf which I mow,

I an trying to see and to find a conmon languare so that yéu herin
more or less to spealr more plausitly, but, we take one question,
another question, ({(and)) there ((appear)) small, but in some cases
quite large, nistalkes vhich one cannot in any way helieve,

I want to repeat this thing again -- you told me straight out that
you received {((pay)) for rank vhen they did not pay for rank at
this time. |

How can I believe that you werc there at this tine.

Ha, ha, ha, ha; you know, in general, you are a fine fellow, telling
jokes {anekdoty rasskazyvat')....

But vhy, for vhat.

You do not know when I was there or was not there; well, you are
saying funny things; well, really, we are grown men (vzroslyye lyudi).
I do not know. .
Yell, ((if)) you do not believe, then you do not believe me. 5
¥hy, then, talk with ﬁe; why, then, tallx with me, in general, and
drag this out (tyanut® etu lyamku) {{wnen)) once you do not believe
mer ‘

{{1£)) you do not believe, then you do not believe.

I cannot jump higher than my head.
Fou are trying.

No, no; I see that you are trying ~- as your colleagues before you

expressed ((it)) —- to find some kind of hooks (kryuéhochki) and to

3
1
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%ell, ((it is)) not this ((wﬁ?éh is))'importahf:
¥ell, ((it is)) important not that ((3's surnamc)), thais ((B's>i-
surnazc)), vwho sits here, said that from Uarch {{onward)) he rececived ' 3
300 ({rubles)) for rank, 1,700 for, ah, basic pay for position | i

{dolzhnostnoy oixlad).

v
RTRA7 U

*But in liarch of 1953 they were not giving ((pay)) for ranl.

PRI

*Ha! We have caught hin.”

¥ell, you catch me; let us discuss ({this as it is})} in reality
(po-zhiteyski), as it is in 1li‘e.

I tell you: I received 1,700 as a casc officer,fr ran!t «- 300.
For a vear (V techeniye coda) they were not giving ((pay)) for rank. 3
Which; |
About, it scens tome, I think,"io, at the end of 1333, the

bepinning of 1934, they were not giving ({pay)) for rank.,

But, again, I do not remember.

In my opinion, so, in ny opinion, you know exactly when they were
not.glving'((pay for rank}).

I want you to dig up this dog ({(i.e., tell the truth - etu sobaku
razryt'}).

You yourself know,...

Understand (Poymite), if, so, you do not give me {(a chance}) to
say, I told you that from such;and—such a time until such-and-such
they were not giving us ({(pay)) for rank, and we now would have
(ne stoyalo...) by no questions of any kind and we would not be

dwelling on this, if I had known {(when)).

A KGB employee would say ((it)) so, that they were paying fron
such-and-such a time until such-and-such ({a time)}) and from such-
and-such {(a time)) they did not pay.

Yes; why are you laughing (Vy chto sﬁeyetes')?

{{B laughs))




BT L e

One nust {({(i.e., I have to say so)),.

Wlell, this is a jote (aneldot).

((in English)) Vell. 4
Understand ({it)) as you wish ({(i.e., take it however you liike)). .-2
Understand ((it)) as you wish.

You are a man of great humer ((i.c., you have a great sense of

hunmor - ¥y s bol'shin yumoron chelovek)).

Honestly, of great humor.

We will tal% pore about hunor {(lly yesachc ob yu-orom pogovorim).

Wie have tine enough.

0f course. {((Pauses))

Well, 1if I knew exactly, I would tell you: exactly from this month,

until such-and-such a month, they were not giving ((pay)) for rank. .%

I will remind ({you)) only one time more: the point is not that f

am questioning you, that you must know exactly, that they stopped

((paying for rank)} in that month, but they began again to give

{((pay for rank)) in this ((month)); this certainly is not the point.

Even if you were in error by 5 months on this, screw it (khuy s nim),

I certainly would not bother (ya sovershenno ne bespokoyus') about

this. ... | - i

Yes, right.

...One thing bothérs me} you say you started ((work)) (vostupili)

in March....

In March.

- ~ ol
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in this tize -= they were not payine {{(for raniz}).

This is the problem (Vot vopros).

B. (1G) what, I said that they began to pay, cven if (puskay) they
bepan to pay ne later... both... both 1,700 and 500; well, anyway,
I began in Ydarch {nu, va to nachal s nﬁfta).
I am telling you that they did not pay for a year, approrinately,
for ran!: {za pogony), for ran:, for a year; thch, arain, thank the
Lord (slave tche Gospodi), they returned ((the pay)) for ranl.

Yveryone too: a good breath (Ves' narod vzdo:hnul) and said (1G).

A, If we take ({(this)) further, there are nany -- I do not sant to say
that perhaps this was forgotten, etc. -~ there are nany other
docunents tvhich can reaind ((us)) wheh they wore payine, when they
were not paying....

({XG; A and B speak at the same tine.))

...The Kozsomol card (bilet), Party card, TDY (lomadirovochniye),

leave (otpuska) ((docunents))....

B. Right.

A. ...And so forth and so forth.
Even if a person is not interested in money, but this for hinm (no
eto u nero)....

B. In the Komsomol card....

{(XG; A and B speak at the sane time))

rre s e 1801 AR MR et e 4 2

It is obvious {(vidno}, obvious, right.

A. ...Everyvhere it is obvious.

R PPN
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They were not paying somevhere taere In the beminning of oy work.

.’ 3((Tnat is)) all.

Aﬁe‘ o 4, Now, you, of course, are tryine soschow to tell e vhnat I oam secizing,
sone zind of trichk (kaverZnoye) word, etc.; but just a few ninutes . :i
ago you said that they stopped ((payihg for ran!:)) sonevhere in tae - ﬂg
end of 17053 apd tegan azain in 1234.... é

B. {({Interrupts)) (. In ny tine (Pri mne), i ny tize, I do not remcmber. )

A. ...In the bteginnin: of ny ((i.c., B's)) worl:, they stopped paying

{{for ran')).

B. Yes; you are not tellin- me; I am saying: perhaps, I do not know,
I supposc that for a year they did not pay ({(for rank)), as I an

telling you.

A. I ILnow exactly that, not in Jarch, not in April, but still sonetinme
before this, they stopped paying.

This is exact.

B, ‘They did not pay for a yecar, and then it ((i.e., the pay for rank)})
wvas returned, and everything... went (i vse.,. poshlo).
Vell, I have not the slichtest wish to hide ({anything)), or to tell
other than the truth {(ne pravdu), or to deceive.
¥Well, not the slightest.

On the contrary, only on the contrary.

A, You, of course, do not want to say that you cannot control your
tongue with your head.

You can do this well.

You already have proven this.
And no one questions this, you understand’ - 'g
You said that you do not want to deceive anyone, etc., etc., but I

‘am not saying that your tongue deceives; but the head «= no....

*eARCT
I W 6t he &
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A. ((in Ingzlish)) You sec,

because they work together. ' RN

3
?

3. A sinrle vhole.

A. It certainly does not enter into ny assignnent to somehow give you .

(stavit' Van kakiye-to)....

B. ((interrupts)) Ko, your assignnment is sinply to clear up the

questions which are not clear for you, and ((that is)) all.
A. ...The needle (shpil'ki) or still....

B. ¥o, no, no.

I do not feel ({it to be so)), in any case.
A. Ve certainly are grown men (vzrosliyye lyudi).

B. Absolutely; no, no, no.
I ask vou to continue as you consider necessary.
((That is}) all.

I answer as I remember, as I remember.

A, Alright. ' .
We will take a break (sdelayem pereryv). L

i ‘ Let's go to the toilet, etc. (Poydem nemnozhko possym, posmotrina).

B. I have a great request ({(to make)) of you; if it is possible, if it

is possible to resolve this‘queStiOn, if possible, perhaps, during

g
;ﬁ
2

our breaks to smoke a little, ha, ha, ha.

! A. ({in English)) Alright.
I think we will resolve this question favorably.

¥hen we return after the break, I think we will give ((you)) a

L. Relkshelt® . . L.
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CARBLC BT,
(: Thanks. )

Please.

({BREAX))

My cigarettes arce very weair,

I always anm trying to quit snoking.
They have established that ((it is)) very harmful for the health,
but they all snoke.

Iveryone (Vse) continucs to smoke,

I think that you have been thinking during these {(za eti) few
minutes.

Perhaps you will tell me something new about that of which we have

been talking.

I was thinking.

You know, at one monent it scems there was a SAVCHENKO... no... no..

It was BEL'CHEWKO as Deputy.
I said that the Deputy under SEROV was Lt Gen DBEL’CHENKO.

I do not remember a second SAVCHENKO, no.

If we return to the question: when did they stop paying for rank,.
when did they begin to pay again, etc., do you not think that it
would be better for you to return to that story which you told»A
earlier ;; that you started work in the organs of the NGB, not in

1953, but in 19532 ....
In 1953.

Because this question of pay for rank, etc., it is connected with
the year 1952, and therefore whem you said_earlier that you began

o

M’SEERE“; ‘

Ae-;ég; o
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((actual)) nistory ((i.e., reality, the truth)), but when you switched

14-00000
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and bezan to insist on 1353, tiaen it is very difficult to put that

> which you_hnvc said in such orcer that, well, for ecxample, ((that is))

. .!.ii; 0 &

.thhat one believes cverything that you have sald,

T an pot in the least pushing {ne nastraivayu) you....

B. ((Interrupts)) I do not want to tell you a lie (nepravda).

ERTVHE TR 7 S

A. ... In sonme == as you say -- in some unnecessary direction.

For me, all directions are the sane,

B. TFor you, the truth is necessary.
I am trying to say...; well, you understand, at tines, of course,
I anm telling what I imagine to have been the case (to, chto‘ya
predstaviyuyu, kai eto btylo).
And, pernaps, I make mistakes.

But I cannot pull out (poddernut’') what is not ({there))....
({(XG; A and B speak at the sane time)) b 3

In March 1953,

A. Here again is the question, by the very same, ((pay)) for rank,
as you said, I have not forced you to say anything (ya ne tyanul

Vas za yazyk) and so forth, you yourself said that....

B. ({Interrupts)) Simply in my imagination {v moyen predstavleniy) e
you understand, in my imagination -~ that it was soon (v skorosti) —-
in my imagination, I again emphasize this: in my imagination =~ that

soon after .I {v skorosti kak ya) began work, well, perhaps in the

A donted S
.

end of‘1953 == in my imagination, you understand me -« they toock
away {(the pay)) for rank and they did not pay us {({for rank)) for

abie

approximately a year. ' !
Then they brought it back (Zaten obratno vernuli). o

After this -- it was later —- several times there were (khodili)

——SEGREL
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' "Do you want (Vy chto khotite) to leave the Army without pants (bez

_shtanov): "

FURTSEVA, a ncmber, as a nember of the Presidium, cane out with the "

sugrestion to take away ((the pay)) for rank, hoth in the Arny

and anong us (u nas).

ZHUKOV, wvho was a nmember of the Presidium at that tine, was categoricall:
against this.

It is not possible to do this in the Army.

e s s o a3+
i
ihy v 4 FERAR

Hot possible.
And there were persistent rumors that they asain would take avay

((the pay)) for rank. : o .
How did they answer FURTSEVA on this.

I simply an saying that this was FURTSEVA's suggestion, when she

was 2 nember of the Presidium.

4]
tJ

What ~-- was she responsible (otvechala) for the work of the & or

the Army as a2 member of the Presidiunm:

No.

As a member of the Presidium, in all probability a dquestion was

posed (stoyal vopros) in the Presidium about the economy of resources,
about finding additional (dopolnitel’'nyye) money, somewhere, somehow,

and they resolved the question, the problem was resolved; in part

she suggested, as one of the forms, cutting this money.

The Army ({is)) huge, has nany people (mnogochislennaya).

If {(pay)) for ramk ((were)) cut, then huge amounts of money
(ogromnyye den’gi) ({would)) be reccived,

In the organs ({of State Security}} and the Army.

Is it true that one of the members of the Presidium answered her:

1 do not know.
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S—— ~1m--1ﬁv@ry~Entﬁg&f!é!l‘!ﬁa”ﬁﬁ”f“‘ﬁianguage (Iorma) disnissed this

question, ((sayinc)) that one cannot "in any case take away ((pay for

ranl)) in the Army.
Because in the Arny the pay rates for officers {{are)) not larze,

having in nind conpany commanders, ctc, : i

A. Speaking {o the point, vhen you were working in.., in the DBaltic

e bl Ao SR 0

Fleet or wvhere you were -=- in the GRU, you say == how nuch were you
paid (siol'lzo Van platili).

¥Yhat was the basic pay (olxlad).
B. I began as an interpreter~translator (perevodchik), my position
{dolzhnost’) was == interpreter~translator of Intelligence (ra:ved:i)

of the Seventh Naval TFleet.

A. TVhere {((was)) this Seventh Fleet.

B, It was in the Pacific Ocean, two fleets: the Fifth and the Seventh.

At that time, there were two fleets.

Ve dereare vt s wa et

A. Interpreter-translator of the Seventh...

PRI NPT

B. Interprecter—translator of Intelligence of the Seventh Naval Fleet.

A. And how nuch were you paid:

At that tine (Togda)®

B. ((After a long pause, B speaks, with uncertainty)) The basic pay
for the position (Dolzhnostnoy oklad) was, as an interpreter-

_translator, it seems, 1,200 ((rubles)), plus -- I began ((as)) a

f
NENEPFEVIPREC U IR

juhior lieutenant -~ 400; now, all of this has been doubled.
A. 1,200 and 400, this is 1,600, and....

B. Double.

egp BET —
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8. And, ((wait)).qnc h1nutc... they also added (nabernali) here ((pa}‘for))

i
g .

secrccy;;: 4
Then..-f%?qitidhal, for us... well... officers received. .. well, as ' : N ?
you knowj?tbere is a finance certificate (denerhnyy attestat), a i é
clotaing a@d equipment supply (veshchevoy) certificate, a rations i" g
supply (péoﬁovol'stvcnnYY) certificate, so we received ratiops % .%

(payex), gave a certificate, ({(even)) those who did not have their
family {((with them)) ate ({on this certificate)), but then no one
had (vse ne imeli) {((these certificates)), {({excepting)) only a fow : ) ;
persons ((who)) had their family ((with them)), ({to wvhom)) rations
supply certificates were given; we ate in the mess (stolovaya) of
the submarine base in Postovaya Harbor (v bukhte Postovoy), and

for us still (i nam yeshche)....

This is considered 2 remote area (otdalennoye nesto), plus ((there
are)) hardship conditions (tyazhelyye usloviya), additional rations;
we did not take the additional rations, but received more money.

In general, a large sum was accumulated (nabegala).

Because this ({was)) double ((pay)).

© s Gevpmane dngmt o b b

A. Well, this was in the Far East, but how much did you receive in
the Baltic. _ !

B. I worked in the Baltic ((Fleet, area)) a few (neskol'ko) months,
here I already, when I arrived in the Baltic in 1952, ¢o me there,
there they made me ({a)) senior interpreter-translator of the HMAS MRP,

} - of Intelligence of the Fourth Naval Fleet in the Baltic; again,

there were two fleets: the Second and the Fourth.

{
H
i
! _ Here was... senior ((B thinks hard, speaks with uncertainty))

ST S R SR

33 something... 1,500... I do not remember.

.

The fourth Fleet,the base of the Fourth Fleet -- Baltiysk..... l
. !
Then, of course, less money, because here ((there is)) no double i
(nikakikh dvoynykh) ({(pay)), nothing... here, plus, ({for)) the [
rank of lieutenant == 500, plus, then, ((for)) secrecy; yes, ((and))

for language, of course; both in the Far East and here, 10%, there and

L Beweldy L.
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And ((that is)) all. :

There was no double ((nay)}.

But here, a few (neskol'ko) months, until the ond of 1332.

A. Well, anyway, for you... it was a great blow ({(to lose the pay)) :
by ranks, there was much talk about this, and so forth, and I would

try or wish that you would recall, aoyway, when they cut off ((the

¥
i
i
H
R4
;
4

pay)) for ranks.

B. I do not remember; I do not remenber.
For a year they did not pay, or my work, inthe beginning of ny work j ) f

in the VD, they did rot pay for ranks for a year.
“A. VWell, in the beginning of your work, as you said....
B. {(Interrupts)) Well, the beginning of my work, this ({(was in))

19533-54, this ((was the)) beginning....

In ny imagination, that they cut this off, to my thinking... ({(B

speaks with uncertainty)) at the end of 1953. : . :

But I do not remember exactly.

They did pot pay for ranks and....

A. This ((is)) a very important moment, and imagination, this is one
thing, but the facts, another thing.

It does not matter how you turn and twist, if you say that in March

they appointed you as a case officer and paid 1,700 ((rubles)) and,

s

for rank, 500, when in fact thev were not paying {(for rank then))}.
How can you make things conmect up (("join ends” - svesti kontsy s

] kontsami)) here:

PRI TV RIRLY S

B. But there is nothing difficult here ((about this)).

They did not pay me ((for rank)) for a year; I do not remember the

period exactly.
Whether it was the end of 1953 or the beginning of 1333, from the
3 beginning.of my work, for a year I did not receive ((pay)) for rank o

B

Fres
<
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work.

Well, then, you already werc working; by whose order and how was it

established (ustanovleno)} to pay for ranks again; when was this.

Tney did not pay anyone (vsem) ((for ramk}) for exactly a year; {(that
is)) all.

Alrigh?l; you do not remember when they cut off the pay ({for rank));

verhaps you remember vhen they restored ((it)).

It scems to me that they restored ((it)) at the end of 1954.
It seens ((so)) to me, but again I cannot say exactly.

In my imacination, they rc¢turncd ((it)) at the end of 1934,
¥haet -=- z2nd they paid the back-pay (zaplatili za vse staroye):

No, no, no, no; not a kopeck; nothing.

They simply began again,

Well, here again, I wish to repeat «- do you consider it possible _
to believe a perscn who worked ({there)} for 11 vears, etc., ({and))
who does not remember exactly and does not know or does not want to tell
such a fact, very important in the life of all officers, ({(as)) wvhen
they took away and whei they restored ((the pay for rank)); how must

I, what conclusion must I draw (dolzhen vyvod delat’) from this:

I cannot tell you what conclusion you must draw.

* You are drawing the conclusion....

You are sitting in my place and talking with such a person as‘yourself,'
who will tell you this ((just)) so; what kind of conclusion would

you draw:

i
p

&
k]
s
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dﬁhnﬂqiﬂauﬂéﬂﬁn,

- are discussing: "Aha! This is how it was {Aga, vot eto vot).”

o
alrlght is thls really so important

T
But what do we get (chto polucnxtsya) if we go to "19532=33 == the i »E
! 3
devil with it", thcn :we come to 1954-55 -~ "the devil with 1t"; | :
then at what ((point}) wlll we arrive (x chemu my priyden): f _g

((Pauses, sighs)) I do not know.

I am telling what (kak) I remember.

It scems that each and any living man ((must draw the same conclusion})
if you remember such a thing as that FURTSEVA objected and they
opposed her, and so forth -- vyou know, as they say in English,

((in English)) background...

Well, because I... and father was alive, I heard these rumors which
({were heard)) by father, as roughly happens in life (kak idet
zhizn® priblizitel’no); what ((was)) there, what kind of question
was discussed there, or something was decidéd there, or some such

thing was started there.

But what (kak) do you think —- you have said nuch about various !
events in the period of these two-three years, what happened in

the Presidium or what you heard from father, and so forth; have you
said many such things, in your opinion {po vashenu mneniyu), or not.

. __m

Yhere did I say ((them)).
To whom: : : ;mb
Here (Zdes'), here.

To all (Vsem litsam) who have worked with you.

Of course, I have said that which I heard, which I remember, which I i |
remember,
That which I remember,

Let us suppose, some kind of question has arisen about something we

S ot
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it )
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A. Let us return once more to the question -~ perhaps it upsets you '%

a little, but I think ({there is)) nothing to be upset about here; . 3
i1f you know, say ((so}); if you do not know, say that you co not

know.

§
3
%
4
*

¥Well, let us move (davaite poidem) to Building 12 on Dzerzhinskliy

Strect.
B, So.
A. VWhere, according to your words and as far as know, this is part

of the whole Committee for State Security; there ({is)) a numher
{ryad) of directorates (upravleniye} and depts (otdel), ctc.

We will begin from the first cntrance (pod”yezd) énd go througn all
{(of then)) in order.

We will begin from the Central Entrance (Tsentral'nyy Vkhod) to

the Club.

A, You know, of course, where it is located....
B. Yes, yes, on Dzerzhinskiy (na Dzerzhinskoy)....

A. On Dzerzhinskiy. - T

What ((is)) there, vhat kind of sign hangs there.

B. There is no sign of any kind.

Absolutely none.

A. .-¥hat kind of sign hung there, if none hangs there today (yesli ne

visit segodnya):

B. I do not remember ({that)) any kind of sign ((hung there)) in all

ny years ((there)), there ({is)) none.

PRRE STEN 2N
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o ((can)) I show you == Buildinézijmhere, s0; this is how they are .

3

{vot kak oni).

,-,~...“

A. V¥ell, I understand; I see how Building 12 is situated {(raspolozhen).

.

B. iHere, herc ((is)) the cntrance (vkhod), so, here, froan Dzerzhinskiy, lé
from Dzerzhinskiy Street, ((there is)) no sign of any xind here, E
absolutely notaing. : i
But here, nere ((is)) the Gastronom, here ((is)) the sign, 'Gastronon™,
in this building; this ({is)) Building 12, first floor.

A, Lect us inagine that you, you understand... when did thaey open the
Gastronon there.

B. The name (nazvaniye): Gastronoa 40th {({(i.e., Gastronom No. 40))...
when did they open...:

({¥hen)) I began work, the Gastronom already was {{(there)). :

A, T¥ell, when, approximately. :

B. In 1953, there already was a Gastronom ((there)). P ;

L

A, ((in Epnglish)) ¥ell,

You see, of course, we can go on like this endlessly, etc: neither
in 1953 nor inm 1954 was a Gastronom there. ‘ N
And there was no reform (I ne bylo reform). ;
: . B. There was no what (Ne bylo, chto).
R R
A. There was none before 1953. e _ b i

B. Well, when ((did they open the Gastronom)):

A, It was not in 1933 or 1954.
This is what I want to know -~ were you there before the opening:

1 e e
& e e

e
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BE. 1 do not kpow, I do not know.
I do not kpow when it opened’
A, ¥ell, if you were there in 19533-54, as you say, and you tell me that

the Gastrononm was there, I can. in no way buy this, well, I canmot in L

any way, bécause.... . !
((xG; D interrupts))

B, ...¥ell, alright.
In my irmagination, the Gastronom ({wns ticre)) from 1333 as far ns
I remenber.

{(Laughs nervously, unhappily))

A, I again want to say, simply in couradely fashion, that imagination,

this is one thing, but the fact =- completely another thing.

B. You may know {((some)}) facts, but I may not know {({these same))} facts.

I may know facts, but you may not know a number (ryad) of facts,.

gt g st e

A, A person who worked ({there)) 11 years must, and probably does, know
when they opened the Gastronom there and must also know what was

there before the Gastronom.

B, ((aAfter two minuvtes' silence:)) I do not know,

¢

et vt e+
T

g A. Here again ((is)) a question.

i - It is, of course, difficult for me, and for 21l of my colleazues who

vere here before this, to believe that you were there, from 1953
until ((your)) last day, in the Second Chief Directorate of the KGB. -4

Because you even do not know the simplest thing: the building next

to Building 2 (sleduyushcheye zdaniye dlya Doma 2), ((and)) what was 1
in it there: ’ o LR
Even such a big thing as the Gastronom -~ you do not know when they




B.

' s d o

I even do not ask ({which)}) uonth, but slmply the year, the year

I do not xpow.
I was not izterecsted, I do not know, such a question did not cone
up (pe stavil takogo voprosa),

In my imagination, it was ((there)).

Therefore, of course, however you may try to put your case nore or
less in orcder, etc., it is hard, it is in no way possihle to sew it

up {£i kak ne vozmozhno podshit'),

But ((it is}) very sad.

({1t is)) very sad that this is so.

And one cannot believe that you, for exanple, you insigst that

“1 was {({(there))”, "I know ((this)).”

({Even)} if it was not ((so)) with someone eise (s kem), it was
{{s0)}) with ne.

It turns out so: =2 thousand soldiers are out of step, and {({only))

one is in step.
I do not insist (utverzhdayu) ((that)) this ({(is so0)}).

I know that you do not insist....

. {(XG; A and B speak at the same time))

.1 answer you what was ((25’ "that it was"™ = chto bylo)) there.

God knows'!
If I began to visit (poseshchat')  Building 12, then I visited . .

Buiiding 12, then from the very beginning of my life (s samogo

nachala moyey zhizmni), 1953, from the very beginning, 1953, I went

" to Personnel (kadry) these 2-3 times, then I began to work.

¥Where only could I go in Building 12.
To the Club and... well, to meetings (sobraniye) in the Club.

B TN
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Then, yes.

Run in to tiaec Second Spécial Departacat (Spetsotdel), at the foﬁiiﬁ'
entrance (pod”ye:zd).

This ((is}) the fourth cntrance, and FINO (Finansovyy Otdel -~ Finance
Departuent)) -- the ((is)) the sixth entrance. S

These ((are}) all of the entrances which I visited for approximately

a year, until 1353, until 195 ..., yes, 1338,

Let us return again to the question:
Here ((is)) the door to the Club of the HGB,

Vhat {({is)) written there or was written....

lothing,

Well, nothing {((is)) written on these doors.

There are a few (neskol'ke) doors, ydu renenber,

The entrance (Vkhod), well, not as the usual entrance (pod"yezd) in
Building 12 or in Building 2, this ((is)) not the usual entrance
'(pod"yezd) to the Club.

This ((is)), a few glass doors, a few.

You go in one (thodite Vy v odnu).

You sec (Smotrite),

Here, let us suppose, {({is)) one glass door, a second glass ({(door)},
a third.

You enter at this ({one)) and, here you go through at this door, so,

you go through the next entrance (vkhod) and there already you show ...

your pass {propusk) and you pass through into the Club (v pomeshcheniye
Kluba).

{(in English)) Alright.

There ((is)) no sign (nadpis’) of any kind.
Absolutely nothing.
((It is)) another thing that when you go in this one glass door here,

there may be signs inside, in this

TR R L




" let us say, ((there may be s!gus)) about camps (lager’), that there
are a nunber of camps to vﬁicﬁ the'cnployccs #enéAthcir children,

or there may be, let us say, ({2 sign cbncerning)) a trip for

b
o
£33

3

mushroons, and sonething eclse there (yéﬁhqhe tan), the devil knows ;'

where (izuda).

A. But, you do not remember, from the moment {(of the beginning)) of
yvour worx there, how long taec sign {vyveska) -~ "Club of Znployees :
of the Hinistry for State Security USSR (i{lub Sotrudnikov Ministerstva

Gosudarstvennoy DBezopashosti S8SI)” -- hung ((there)).
B. And..., I did not see this sign, I did not sce {{it)).

A. Too bad {(Ochen' zhal'), too bad.
Let us return again to one question:
As you said, and this also is known to all, in March, a2fter STALIN's
death, the MVD and the MGB combined (ob"yedinili vmeste}, and BERIYA ;
became the Minister of Internal Affairs; XOBULOV was his First
Deputy. !
¥hat club did the MVD employees use after they joincd (kogda oni

soyedinilis® s) the NGB

B. The thing is that on Dzerzhinskiy Street, if you go just a little
further along there, ({there is)) the Club of the KGB -- that which
is there pow =~ on the right side, but ((if)) you goMEQ;ther along
Dzerzhinskiy Street, on the left side, on the left side, where at
one time therews a store, the so-called "“Arrow (Strela)" or

something in that vein, closed, there was the club of the MVD.
L A. ¥hat happened to it:

B. It also remained in the system s a club after 1353-34, because

I remémber that KLYUCHAREV, an employee of the First Department

{(Otdel), died in 1953 and there was a question (vopros stoyal) of

whether to show the coffin with his body in this Club of the KQB -

SET?ZTV : e ST
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Because it was necessary to find a place {pomeshciieniye), they

wanted to use either this or this building.

—
g e
IRYF HV VIR L.

And I wanted to say ({that)) they used both clubs.

A, What is there in this building at present.

e Lenet e T AR

On the day you were there for the last time in {foscow, or the last

2-3 years. ;

B. There is no club as such there now.
It is further along tae street, vhiere the former “Arrow” ((store
was)); there is no club as such, but there is spze kind of construction
organization (stroitel'noye khozyaystvo) from the YhOZU (( Housc=
keeping® Directorate == {hozyavstvennoye Upravlenive)) of the UGB,
a construction, well... section (otdeleniye) or departnent (otdel)
or something, the devil knows, but something is there {(no chto-to
tam sidyat).
That is {((to say, then)), the buildiug as such continues to belons

to the KGB, not the MVD.

A. Let us return, further, to our mutual friend, ROZIZNKO.

Earlier, you said that you conpleted (z2polnyali) a questionnaire

{anketa) and an autobiography for his section (otdeleniye), for ;

him and for his enmployee.

¥hat other steps {(Chto yeshche... predprinimalo) did the MVD or the _

MGB «- call it whatever you wish ~~ take in order to accept you.

B. I absolutely do not know what they did (prinimali); I absolutely
do not know, because there were only these 2-3 conversations with

me and I 100% cannot tell you.

i1 O kb e s

I cannot tell you; I filled out the questionnaire {anketa) for

ROZHENKO and for his man, for his case officer vho talked with me,

ik

or ((it happened that)) when I had just started work, SAKHAROV, the
Personnel man (kadrovik) of the Second Chief {Kirectorate), gave -
.ﬁéAtwo questionnaires, two autobiographies to fill out.

i cannot say exactly.

2TARPE
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A. But do you remeaber the name of the Chief of the Personnel Scctidn
{(Otdeleniye Kadrov)} of the Sccond Chicf Dircctorate at that tire or ;%

later. = _i Q

B. There was none {Ne bvlo), there was none.

There vas one Personnel nan in the Second Chief Directorate.

{({Taere vas)) npot a Personnel group (gruppa), there was nothing.

Onc Personnel rman - SAHALROV, Nikolay Grigor'‘yevich,
A. Are you surec of this.

B. ilo, ho; not just certain ~-- we were on the sane floor (my sideli na
odnon ctazhe).
And his office was here, literally ((just)) a few steps from the

First Department (Otdel).

A, But who vns responsible for (zanimalsya) personnel of the Surveillance

Departnent (Otdel Naruzhnogo Nablyudeniya) of the Second Chief

Directorate at that tine.

B. UODK:

UODK... Central Personnel {Tsentral’nyye Xadry).
{{(¥ait)) one minute, UODX, they also had, like the Second Chief ;
{{Directorate)) had its own Personnel man in the system. |
Not in Personnel, but, like the Second Chief ((Directorate)), they :

had == I think —- their {((own Personnel)) Department (Otdel).

A, But what -- you do not know more exactly:’
H You worked SO many years thére, you must probably know.

That is how it is, to speak in a coarédely way (Vot tak, po-tovarishch-

it e, A,

eski).

B. But I am answering you.

in & comradely way.

#xb - em
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" I am. answering you, as I remember ((it)}, as I know ({(it)).
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itinte.

you do pot know who headed (znvcdoval) Personnel and who headed

{(vedal) Survecillance.

One minute. . e

How ({was)) it, who headed ((them))

Surveillance, in ny time, as soop as 1 had tepun tolwork, the UODI,

the Directorate for the Protection of the Diplomatic Corps {Upravleniye
thrany Diplomaticheskoyo Xorpusa), surveillance of foreigners
{slezhka za inostrantsami) was upder {byla podchinena) the Second

Chief Directorate, under (vo glave s) BOVKO ((or, - DOYKOV.)),

Nikolay Vasil'yevich, who also was (yavlvalsya) Chicf of the UODH and

he was a Deputy Chief of the Sccond Chief Directorate.

Sut neither he nor somecone from his, so to say, staff (shtab) was

{ne sidel) in Building 2 (v zdannii Doma 2).

Do you Lnow something about their safc apartments (koaspirativnaya

kvartira), where the Surveillance employees lived, where they went

to work in the morning, from which they moved about, etc., etc., in tha

period, the period of the beginning of your work in the Second
Chief Directorate -- ({I ask)) because there were so many of them

in Moscow (ikh v Moskve do chertovoy materi).
P-s-s ((An explosive sigh, through nearly closed lips))

¥ell, name for me a few safe apartments vhere they do not take ageﬂfgi
but it is called a safe apartment vhere employees come in the
morning, from which they move about at work, {(and to which)) they

then come back after work.

1 have given the whole plan (skhema vsya) for (po) the First
Depzrtment (Otdel).

I am interested... I have seen this whole plan; . s
{{(In English)) 1It's alright; we still will come back to this pl#n

if it is (budet) necessary.

et
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worked so long, and so forth....
You nust know nany of them.

rane a few for me.

((Longz pause)) I cannot tcll yvou the main (osnovnaya) safe
apartnent, the surveillance base (baza slezhki) of the First
Departaent (Otdel), of the foraer UCDI, in 1953-54 I ((de¢ laughs))

do not remcnber, I was not even here.
In 1355
In 1235, I was not even with them (u nikh) at thesc bases.

Do youu: imagine that a person who has worked as a case officer and
higher in thne Second Chief Directorate, connected with operational
matters, cither fipishes off ((maintains, "sews up" - podshivayet))
files (papki) or something, but a person sits near him, vho meets

agents, conducts surveillance, requires 1t, writes assignments, etc....

So.

... And in the course of threc years you did not once hear and see

and you do not know anything about these safe apartments:
Well, why do you put the question thus.

Because you have answered thus.

Otherwise, I cannot put ((the question so)).

You have said that in this time you were not working there and you

do notAknow.

In another instance, this morning or at the beginning of our con-
versation, you tried to convince me that (chto u...)...

“} heard one th;ng there, there a thing,” but in the end I cannot
confirm how this happened.

I am saying that this thing also could have been heard;

true:

4] DB % BN Ot
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in this Surveillance Departﬁ;gi or in the Direcforéte for Attéira
{Po Dclam) of the Diplomatic Corps, etc., I am not putting a quéstién

to you of all the details of tais, I simply am asking vhere were

———

the sare apartments of the Sccond Chief Directorate, where all of

their surveillants were (vsya ixh naruzhxa sidela),

B. UODX, all of the UODK was (sicelo), all tie chiefs of departments
and the department (otdel) were in the area (v rayone) of either
Second or Third Meshcﬁanskaya ((Strecet}}, in 1753-54, wvien EOYKO
headed, weli, surveillance (slezinka) of forcigners.
¥ell, I never went there.

Hov does ihe work with this surveillance usually shape up.

Let vs suppose, (1G) worker (rabotnik), I an running (vot ya vedu},
I save a feéiéﬁses, I write out an assignzent for surveillance
{slezhka); the chief of the section {(otdeleniye) signs, the chief
of the department (otdel) signs, with regard to foreigners.

And it goes by its own route (svoim kanalom)....

A. Ve will return to this.

I understand how, by vwhat route it goes, etc. '
I have, as taey say, the most routipe, the most trifling, question, §
which an employee who worked there nust know. ' |
Raze for me a few of the safe apartments vhere employecs of ({the
department of)) éurveillance of the Second Chief Directorate had

their headgquarters apartments (shtab-kvartira). e e
To which they go in the morning and from which they move about ét ;
worx and {{to which)) they return.

Do they not go to Building 2.

B. ¥No.
They. : \ 4 _ ' . %
Each division (otdel) has its ({own)) base, its ((own)) base.

I do not know the base 1933, 1954, 1955, where the base of the

First Department (Otdel) was. | ST

o B

8,
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The main (osnovnaya) base from which they moved about.
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I was in these at that>€1ne.

A. It is difficult, of course, to helicve, especially for ne, that a = - - {

person who has worized there, cte., does not inow such a sinpig.thing. ?

n. How ((is)) this, he doesmt remember such a thing.

Simple.

A. Well, name these safe apartnents.

Even one, two.

TR g p—
T e T

A. VWVell, these surveillance points, this is knowm to everyone....
Put vho was the Chief of Surveillance, at that tine or another, of
the Second Chief Directorate; who headed (vedal) the surveillance

(naruzhka) of foreigners.

B. The Chief was BOYKOV, Nikolay Vasil'yevich, Haj Gen BOYROV. % §
A. ¥here did he come from? S : ‘ ' g

8., I do pnot know where he Caﬁe from.
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A,

Chief of the Second C(CRTSTY

Yho else anong taeir employees do you now.
Now, let us say, I know.

Not the Seventh ((Direcctorate)), as now; who, for ecxanmple, vas
BOYRO's deputy or the senlor officers and so forth.
I am not asking ((about)) the lower-level (malen kiy) ((officers));

we will return to this later.
There wae his SINEL'SICIIIOV there, at that time.... ({Lor: pause))

wherce ({vas)) this, in the Vosstaniye Square area.
¥hat kind of more or less outstanding, strilting (kbtoroy v glaza
brositsya) building (ob"yekt) is there.

In order to identify the place (Chtoby nozhno bylo opoznat'),

{2G)... "Taxi (taksi)" stand in this place,

You see: two streets run into (vykhodit na) Vosstaniye Squaie,
Vorovskiy Street (vykhodit ulitsa Vorovskogo) and Gertsen Street;
they end in Vosstaniye Square.

flere, here... ({is)) Vosstaniye Square; here is (vykhodit) Gertsen

({Street)), here is Vorovskiy.

Well, here, across Vosstaniye Square -~ this ({is)) a tall building,

50, here == between Gertsen and Vorovskiy; here is a small, such a;
you know, a little building (domishko), and here inm this little
building ({is)) a taxi stand; so, here, on the first floor, there
was a safe apartment, it is now, but it has‘been put aside

{zakonservirovana)... put aside, they do not work im it.
How far was this from BERIYA®s building (dom)”

BERIYA's building (dom), further, along Sadovaya, further, on the..

right, further, the first cross-street (pereulok).

PR R R NP




e loe Tazbrasyvat eya) on varleus sltes (ob"5e

Of course, it is very hard for me to believe that you worked thére

for such a longg time and could not even notice that a sign hung at

Lo
|
i

the Club,.

- -}:-;‘E
2

B. No; no, no.

Perhaps there was a sign before ny time, but I ¢o not remenber a

sipgn; no.

A, Or, for czample, the fact: ecveryone knows that ({there is)) a
Gastronom there now, but therc was no Gastronoa ((there)) either
in 1953 or 1954.

B. ¥ell, maybe not in 1334, perhaps the Gastronon +as nade in 1355.

{(Possibly, XG; A and B speak at the same time.))

A. ...And you cannot say. o ;

How many times were you personally in this Gastrononm.

B. Again, it is hard to say how many times, I was ((there))....

I cannot tell you.

o oty A~

A. ...Did you drop in either every day or every other day”

P, *

B, Well, no, no....

A, Once 2 month, or once a year.

I think this is not hard {({(to answer))....

B. Perhaps,.. once (1G).

S

A. :..Because if you were working there, you are workiag, etc., well,

did you not have to buy all the groceries (produkt} there, and so-. _

3 o W07 S AL %, g
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A,

Al

- {{Interrupts, speaking loudly)) VWell, there was talk that this

. {(is)} not much of a place (nevazhnoye..; nesto) for the Gastronom.

For some reason or other....
What was the tallt ip the KGBD.
Is it a good neighborhood.
({Is it good)) That a Gastronom is located there. ’ ]

Can everyone drop in at the Gastronon.

Of course, the neighborhood ((is)} not very zood {({(i.e., it is not
good that the Gastronon is there)).

Becauvse, for example, 2 person drops in; he can stand there, inside
the bkigz windows, carry on a surveillance, ({(seecinz)) who... vho }

enters, vho leaves.

¥hat did the employces - for examnple, your Counterintelligence
friends -- say of such a neighborhood.

{(¥as)) it good for the KGB, bad for ihe KGEB.
BAd, of course, for the KGB.

Did anyore say this.

At a conference, 2t a meeting. i
Or sozcvrhere {(else))-

That “we do not need such a neighborhood

I do not remember that, I would have heard some such thing at a - i

conference and somewhere ((else)) there....

Well, since....

Probably there was talk: someone decided to open the Gastronom there.

T T

Well, this was decided in the Mossovet ((Moscow Soviet - Moskovskiy

;:Z
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B.

You were working there; perhaps you heard somathing, on the basis'.

of whicz...

I do not know.
I do not xnow how it was decided,
But I a= telling you that {({(it was)) the opinion of the operational

enployecs that this, of course, ({(is)) not nuch of a neighborhood.

Very nuch so.

It even could happen that, vwhile all Soviet citizens are going

there, foreigners alsc can drop in,

Of couvrse.

And the tourists and so forth, well, perhaps ((persons)) from the
American Zmbassy will not ((1.e.,'w111 they not)) begin to go there

every day....
They will notice ((then)).

They will notice them, yes.

But, of the others==perhaps a person simply is going {((along)) and
sees (i vot uvidel) the Gastronon, runs in {zaslkochil) for a
ninute, etc.

Of course, it is hard -= again, I repeat my earlier ﬁords: as you
wish, whether you like it or not, it is of course hard to believe
that you would work {{(there)) so much time and would not know when

they opened the Gastronom.
I do not remember when they opemed ((it})).

Or, for example, you cannot say more or less exactly how often you

dropped in there or {{if)) you mever were there. e

B e e L R N L
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maaa often =

It is difficult to say....

,:‘
((XG; A and B talk at the sane tinme)) g -“?
A. ... You never dropped in there (... Hikorda tuda ne zakhodili). ! ‘i
: 4
B. Well, no, without doubt (bezuslovno) I dropped in, I thing (po= é f
moyenu), sonetimes I even dropped in after vorlr to do some shopping.
{
A. ((This is)) for me 2lso not understandable.
You understand, of coursec, that when ARAKULMOV was ((there)),
IGNAT'YEZV was ({(there)), and so forth, KOBDULOV of course was not in
-power (ne u vlasti byl) in the HGDE or the VD, he was working in
GUSINZ.
B. (:.Yes, but:)
¢ A
4. I am saying ((that)) when.... :
. v . i
B. (:KOBULOV’) was working with ABAKUMOV, he was working, KOBULOV } 4
.}
A. Yhen: i
B. Well... after the war... in these years, - " :
A. If he was an acquaintance {(znakomyy) of your family, do you know I B

approxinately when he went to work in GUSIMZ:

B. No, mo; I do not know exactly when he went to work in GUSIMZ.

A. And ({(on)) what basis they took him and transferred him there, to
GUSIMZ: ‘

A U O N 0 @

B. ((It is)) my opinion, my opinion == I emphasize ((this)) again ~=

e s PR L




A,

vhich was organized inmediately after the war.
In connection with “Bisnuth", so-calied, the uranius mines
{uranoviye razrabotli), it ({vas)) necessary to put {(otnesti) them

also under GUSIUZ, but.... ,

This {{is)) understandable.

I want to say, we will not go intoe these details, ((about)) "Bismuth",
GUSINZ, etc.; perhaps we will return to them later; approxinmately
when, do you think, HOzZULOV bezan workihg there.

I ¢o not know, I do not now.

Yho was ne there, Chiei or Deputy.

Deputy Chief of GUSIHZ,

But who was the Chief; do you not know.

- There were a few of them; there was SERGEYEV at ome time, vho

worked as Deputy, was Chief, there was someonc else there, a fow

tines....

It is a little hard for me to believe that, for example, as far as

-1 know, XOZULOV was working in GUSINZ, he began approximately in

Sn ¢

1247 or perhaps from the beginning of 1943; he did nbf'héve, then,
any relation to the Ministry for State Security where ABAZUMOV was
Minigter, and ... that KODULOV would phone the HMGB and recommend you
fof wori .

He must have, probably, ({connections with)) some big man who (2G)....

B. You are forgetting about another {{thing}}.

Excuse ne, ((but)) you are forgetting another thing there -— that
GUSIMZ ((was)) a cover {(krysha) for KOBULOV,
Because, in such an enterprise as "Bismuth”, the people working there

were only from the MGB.

SECRET
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<Th18 ((is)) known and....

et Saniien

Unly people from the LGH3 were working ({there}).

... That GUSIHZ was uscd as a cover also is known,

I do rnot want to get into an argument {v polemiku vdavat'sya).

But we will say, not wholly correctly, that GUSINZ was only a cover

for KOBULOV,
e was a (byl kak) licutenant general in Germany, XOBULOVY,

What do you know about relations (vzaimootnosheniye) between

XOBULOV and ABAKLMOV:
I do not know, I do not know,

So we ((will)) not have a falling out (Chtoby nam ne ssorit'sya),

do you not remember whom KOBULOV rang up in the UdGB.

No; absolutely ((not)), absolutely.
There even was no talk of this, to whom he would phone {(pozvonit),
with whom he would talk.

Absolutely pot even a word was said,

¥hat do you think -- were you telling the truth (pravil'mo govorili},.
({(about)) when you went in at the fourth entrance (pod"yezd),
{(about)) when you went to see KOBULOV, that they told you what

room and so forth and you went there alone:

Absolutely the truth.

No one told me which room. A

I received a pass (p£opusk) downstairs (vnizﬁ) where they check. the
pass.

An officer gave me the pass when I arrived and ((I)) said: "Pleasé,
look; there muét be 2 pass in my name here, at this entrance™.

They looked, ((said)) "Yes ((there is a pass)); you gol..
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A. Someonc showed you wshere to go.

B. ¥ell, I asked: “VWaere ((is)) this three..., three hundred... "; some
such room ((was indicated)) there. - , ' i

Taey told me, "Now here at.... You go to the rizht. ‘ :

RRVRIE R WY ¥ DAPRNANN

meme— o~ Thesre—are a2 few-sSteps) o in-at the fourth ({entrance)), to the right,
but then you go over and go up one of the stairways to the third

floor, and you will find this room on the third floor";
A. And po one accompanied you.
B. Absolutely no one.
A. Ko one met you.
B. Ko, no, no.

A, Alright; let us accept that it was so.
In fact, it could not have been ((so0)).
After you completed the questionnaires (anketa), yvyou submitted them
to the Personnel Department (Otdel); then the ¥GB phoned again. f
Let us suppose ({that)) they had received your file (delo) from the
Ravy, and so forth.

Did they send you to the Medical Commission (ieditsinskaya Kommissiya):

B. I did not go to any Yedical Commission when beginning ({work at the

HGRB)).
'A. How ((do you)) explaifi” tils; that you did mot go”
B. I do not know how.

They did not send me to any Medical Commission.
Hothing.

SNSRI - Su.i i

In general, my acceptance (priyem) for work was, so to speak, not
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((It was)) an unusual (Ne obychnyy) acceptance (priyen).

Neither this case officer mor ROZIZENKDO, whom I saw only once, mentioned
P Ser 2ans B

one word, though, that they vwere taking =ze (prinizayut), so to speak,

on influecnce (po blatu) or on ((the strength of)) a phone call frox

higher up {po bol'shonu zvonku).

No one asiked how I know KOBULOV, from where I &know ((hinm)), 2nd no

PRRCSE

one sz2id a word about ZODULOV nad sent nme. o
Absolutely.

But the acceptance (privem) itself was unusual (ne obychen).

I think ((that)) when ROZHENKO or the other employee, when he talked

with you, he probably asked about the state of your health.

But... I... said... nornal health....

I had served... in.,.. in... the Navy.

You understand, of éourse, a person may be fit (goden), for exanple,

to be a pilot, but sonetimes may not be fit to be an operations

enployee.

Vell... I went through ({a medical examination)) when I began... uh,

uh... in the Navy.

I am not speaking of this, because work in the Navy - even in {{Navy))
intelligence =« ({is)) one {({thing)), and work in the State Security..
organs ({is)) another.

¥hen they take a person, no matter from where -« whether he comes

from the Army or is a civilian, anyone, always the routine is fixed
{poryadok ustanovlen), if one may so express it, the law (zakon) ;
((is that)) the person must go through the Medical Commission, not f - ‘;;
because they want to throw him out or to find something ((wrong)), 1 '- !
{{(but because)) it is necessary for the future, when the person

completed his:éervice {otsluzhit svoy srok), or {{they give)) him a

pension or something; br, for example, they accept {(primyali) you as
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' 18 necessary to establish thaf you entered the ((State Seéﬁrliyffi”'fikaﬁﬁ

organs as a healtay person ((and)) fell ill there.

For me¢ this is not unuerstandable: why, there must be some kind of....

.._..-,....,....__..

{(interrupts)) I think {( that it was)) only because, coming from,

{(that it was only)) that, so to speak, on such a level «- KOBULOV

gave soneone a paone call, and ((said)) something, of something ==
and on such a level, therefore, it happened quite casily.
And there were no special, so to speak, conversations with me.

There were no commissions, negotiations -- nothing special,

But, anyway,. they nmust have asked about the state of your health.

¥ell, probably they asxed.

But I did not go through the Comnmission.

You know, Lf you worked there loug.

The routine exists, that a person nust go through the Commission and
when they accept him for work, the Commission's decision is attached,
If they accept you, for example, for the Second Chief Directorate,

for operational work....

But, ycu see, in fact...
({(XG; A and B speak at the same time))

... Taking into attention these phone calls, they simply proceeded,
it seems to me -~ again, it seems to me, it is my impression -- they
proceeded from that position that, "Alright; here is this veteran
{veteran) ((B's surname)); he is on regular service in the Navy.

Hag he gone through the Commission. o |

He has.

Is he healthy:

He is healthy."

And they saw the conclusions of the Commission in my personnel fiie

rALCT
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A, ¥Well, of course, ir the Personnel file....

B. Taerc is the Counission's report (raport)....

A. ... Of course, there was the decision of sone commission, and so forth,

but you are explaining one ((wvay)), and as far as it is known to re¢
personally, ({it is)) coupletely another.

{(It is)) not icportant whence 2 person has conme, whether ne was a
piloﬁ or an engincer, whether he is a civiliap or a nilitary man or
whétevcr, vhen entering on duty in the ({(State Security)) organs,

he must go through *he Medical Commission.

g

is dereads upon the doctors: will they look at him throupgh a

3}

agnifying plass or he simply will go and. ...

B. I understand.
But I absolutely did not go through any commission.
They did not send me when ((I was)) entering....
Later, I went through the Commission as all the employees do; that
is, there were a few times during the entire term of my service
{za vsyu moyu rabotu), but ((this was)), so to speak, a medical re-
examination.

All of the employees went through the Commission.
A. But where did you go through this Commission:

B, On Kisel'nyy Street (pereulok)... it was....
I gave blood, {{specimens for)) analyses....
But on Varsonof'yvevskiy ((Street - pereulok)), I went through the
doctors. ... ' |

In the Polyclinic on Varsonof'vevskiy. -

A. On what basis were you sent to the Commission:

"B, Not ((just)) me... but... the whole chief directorate (glavka) went

i on e
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A,

¥hat — did they deternine fitness for work in tae ((State Security)) {

organs or simply look at the state of health

ioemdd

They were looiing at the state of health, so to spoak; the nedical !

re=cxanination of wow((ever)) it is called.

If {(it was)) 2 medical re=cxanination, then vhy the {({speci-ens

for)) analyses, when there are no. ...

({Interrupts)) Yo, but therec, here you see, I went throurh two or
three times; here it wns necessary to go throurh a series of doctors

and to give {{spccirnens for)) analyses, Llood, urine, etc.

Approximately vwhen was this:

Fir first time you went through this.

I do oot remenmber.

This was two or three times during my years of service,.

The last time, this was... to my thinkipg... the last time I went
through the Medical Commission {((was in)) 1959 or 1960, sometinme

around then {chto-to v eton rode).

But you do not remember the name of the chief of the polyclinic or

of the doctor who examined you.

Well, a whole series of doctors examined me.

¥hich doctor whom you know, to which onme did you go most often’

But I never went to ((anyone)), I did not receive treatment there.
Heither I nor my wife recéived treatment there.

Because we always received treatment in the Kremlevka.

L O A LS

But when you went through the Medical Commission in the KGB in
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Bol'shoy Kisel'nyy Street (pereulok)-

Yes.

4
)
4

You do not remember one doctor.

4
Y
3
b

Ko; I absolutely do mt remember one doctor.

¥ell, we went into the reception office ((“"registration office” -
registratura)), vou go into the ~Teception office, you say: "My name
is"” so=~and-so, in... for... the lledical Comnission.

They give you a check-list (( runner" ~ begunolk)) according to which
you go to the doctors.

You begin.

To whom you are to go is indicated there.

You begin to pgo through.

You go to... this... very... there in the reception office.

I have been to one doctor; you go to the reception office -~ ({you are
told)) to whom rnext to go; they look there, vhich turn, to which
doctor,

Al

You go to this one, you go to this one.

In the course of a2 few days.

Do you not remember when this was.

¥hen was the first time you went through {(the ledical Commission))¥

I do not remember.

It was two or three times.
... In 1953, 1954, 1955, 1956, 1957
I am telling you: I went through the Medical Commission two or three

times.

Two or three times.

1 do not remember the years....

~=SHORE—




.The problem was resolved ((Liﬁﬁhs)) that everyone would engageﬁgnmy”'

physical culture, and it was nccessary to divide the employeesuinto

groups. i

e
R

The first group, second group, and third group. A !
¥hat does the "first", “'second"”, and *‘third' mean.

You understand, the first group, for thls} running is involved and

like real sportsmen, younrg people..

You wanted to receive a certificate (spravka) that ({you were)) not

fit. ... (

Yes, not ({just)) I wanted to receive ({such a certificatel)); it is
thus, so to say, you know, all the emplofees try to avoid the
physical culture sonechow,

It was necessary to come to the physical culture exercises two
times a week.

Twice a week.

An hour before work, and an hour on working time (chas za schet

raboty).

At the same time, how many times do the employees of the Second

Chief Directorate engage ir firing with their own weapons:
Once a year.
Where do they hold these shoots:

{(Pauses)) There is a firinv range in Building 12, in the basement,
and there were shoots also, I remember, in the beginning of 1954-55
in the basement ((of the building)) on Markhlevskiy Street.
Such 2 small building, very shabby...

It ((was)) in the beginning....
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udostoverédiye lichnosti).

Oh, ves, this ((Happened)) soon.

I think, perhaps, well... {(after a)) week, a week and a half; I
do not rcmember exactly.

1 was going through, ((on)) a ﬁass, every:day; they wrote out a.
pass. A '

But then 1 received ((it)) irmediately,

What kind of identification {(vdostovereniye) wvas ({it)).

Can you describe ((it)) for ze.

The Ministry of Internal Affairs of the USSR.

a4 red booklet'(knizhechka).

The seal (gerb).

The Ministry of Internal Affairs of the USSR.

You open ((it}); on the left, a photoc (kartochka); a staup (pechat’)
on the right... but {(a)... the Ministry of Internal Affairs, the
certificate, then, {(that so-and-so)) holds the position of case
(sostoit v dolzhnosti oper)... yes... rank... Lieutenant ((B's full
name)} holds the position of case officer.

Neither the department (otdel), nor the chief directorate (glavk},

absolutely nothing ((else is indicated therein))... ((that is)) all.
What else was written in the identification:

Below, below, before the stamp and the signature, on the right, is
written in small type: ''The holder of the identification is permitted
to keep and bear fireapms (Viadel tsu Udostovereniya gazresheno

khraneniye i1 nosheniye ognestrel’nogo oruzhiya)™.

But when you came to the KGB, did you bring some kind of weapon

(oruzhiye) from the Navy:

No, no, no.
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" Second Chief Directorate:

B.‘”i-think I recelved ((it)) in 19533,

A. How, undor what circumstances, and where.

3
1

B, ({(After a long pause, B speaks, with uncertainty),... The weapoﬂ,
the weapon, where did I receive the weapon ' ?
I received the weapon on ((Dzerzhinskiy)) gtreet, here on Dzerzninskiy
Street. |
Approximately, approximately, opposite iliscl'nyy Stireet (pereulok)..
Also, such a run-cown little building.
On the outside there is no identification (Vmesiane ni ciicm ne
ob"yasnish'), no sign of any kind, nothing....
A small building of two or three stories; I was there....
I received a weapon; someone else of the boys from the departoment

{6tdel) received a weapon.
A, %What was needed in order to receive a weapon.

B. ((Pauses)) To my thinking, we received ({(something)), as... a
i receipt for forwarding (dlya napravieniya)... to... well... to this

section (otdeleniye), from our supply man {khozyaystvennik), SAMARIN.
4. TYou remember what kind ((of weapon)) they gave you’

B. I will tell you now... to my thinking, I had... the last time, this...
{{(2G; B speaks very softly; then, a long pause))
.-.1t seems I had a Walther Number 2... yves, in the beginning, a
¥Walther Number 2.
Then it was changed.
Ho, a "IT", a “TT". ;
And the Walther I had was mine (A Val'ter eto u menya byl lichnyy)... ’i_

A “TT",.. correct.

TS
. _‘..__i_
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Yes; a big one (zdorovyy).

Did they give cartridpres for it
Two clips (oboyma),

Could wou taxe it hone.

No... a weapon.,. the idea is that we nust keep ((it)) in a safec.

It was this way in the beginning.

They kept the weapon in the safef

Thcn, they thought it up; they cave the weapons over to {({the zeeping
of)) the duty officer (dezhurnyy).

There was a roon where they put (%Xuda sdavali) all the weapons by
departaents (po otdelam). '

One fellow of some sort ((was)) respoasible for the weapons.

He issued it, received it, when it was needed for firing, for the
range; they cleaned it.

{2G) then, in the safe; then back; this room was eliminated, along

with the duty officer, and again they issued ({them)) and kept ({them))

in the safes.

Now, for example, in recent years, they laid in the safes until 13363.
In 1983, azain ({(they were stored)) by departments and even from
each section {otdeleniye); there was a single responsible person

in the department and he collected, he collects the weapons for all
sections, he gives you a 1little réceiptucoupon (talonchik); you

have 2 receipt-coupon which {((indicates that)) we are holding ({(the
weapon)) in the safe, such a little yellow ((receipt-coupon)).
Because your number is shown there, etc.

And when it is necessary to go to the range, you receive it.

But, if you go somewhere on an operational assignhent, etec., then

what:

~=—SEHE—
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- Of the departnent (otdel).

ot

in and get ((it)); you prcsenAt this yellow coupon-réceipt (kvitpc'h.'ek').

V¥hat = was there an officer in each department, vho was responsible

s

for the weapons

Responsible for the weapons.

e —— b

Yes.

R

Are you certain of this.

Absolutely....
But, again, I say ((that)) in the beginning we kept, in 1253-34,
ve kept ((them)) rignt in the safe.

Each man held ((his weapon)) in the safe.

But was it permitted to take ({the weapons)) home.

i
§
i

No... no, no.
Yoy
¥ell, anything... a person may get drunk... can happen: ...

Here again... you confirm this abéolutely exactly... but this ((is))

not wholly'so.
That is, vhat ({is)) not sor
I do not want to explain everything.

No.

¥ill you tell me where I am saying ((something that is)) not so.

—SEBREF—
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There is no objection to this.

igg,qucétion ({is)), why were they not permitted to take ((tae
wéapons)) hone.
It is written in the ({identification)) certificate: "It is perﬁitted

to Leep and hear....”

¥ell, the idea {((is)), this is what, a weapon.

You go to a ncet {(vavka), you return from the neet, jou {.havo |
documents, you nmust have a weapon....

The idea ({is)) ...

Dut an employec could take ((a weapon}).

Please, take it; he could take {({(it)) home.

Dut if something happens. .. children play there and... there are

grown children and....

The cmployees also ({is)) a grown person.

I think he is responsible for his actions.

If he gets pretty drunk or over-drinks, what has happened is without
doubt his business ((i.e., responsibility)).

Yhen you came to the EGB, did you have some kind of uniform:

Clothing
Hv Navy upiform.

The Navy uniform also ({(is)) different:

There are various ((uniforms)), you know.
({After a long pause, B speaks, with uncertainty.)) Lieutenant....

Further?

Hiddle ((Higher School, or tight-fitting -- VUZkaya: gz_Tuzkaya?))fétyt? S

shoulder straps (pogon), tunic (kitel'), trousers.




Ry

B'

But I did not have any uniforn made.

Sea duty personnel (Plavsostav).
Why {(the shoulder straps of)) sea Guty personnecl.

I wore both the shore duty (beregovayad ((uniform)) and ((that)) of
sea duty personnel.

0f seca duty persounncl, as....

Which nust you wear.

1:, so to speak, ((dressed)} correctly.
Nf shore duty {(Beregovoy) ({(pcrsonnel)), of shore auty.

0f shore duty (Beregovoy sluzhby) {({personnel}).

- O0f shore duty personnel, because we did not sail aboard ships.

You came to the KGB; how did they have you dress {(kak Vas stall
odevat®) herev

Or, what happened to the old uniform-

Absolutely nothing happened,

I... came... I presented the clothing and egquipment supply cértificatg
{veshchevoy attestat) at Rybnyy Street (pereulok), thié ((is)) near ;
Kuybyshev Street (ulitsa), where they received... stores ({or %
supplies ~ imushchestvo)). B |

There I received material for a uniform of the MVD, KGB.

TR P PN

S0 the material lay at home.

((But 1 received)) money for the tailoring ((of a ﬁniform)).

Then... when... around 1936, from 1956 I did not receive (ya ne

resolved -~ the employees repeatedly raised the question: "We are
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we absolutely do not go atout Th uniform; why do we receive a
uniform.

Could one ({instcad)) receive civilian clothes

&rtcr this... a nuzber {(ryad)... in a nunber of departments {otdel),
not in a nuﬁbcr of departuents, but in all departunents, the problem
({of)) who would (budet) receive was resolved; departuent chiefs,
the leéders {rukovodstvo; of the departments will decide wvho will

reccive civilian clothes, who will rcceive military clothing.

.Let us suppose ((that)) a section ({(is)) peripheral, is responsible

{zanimayetsya) ((for functions.concorning)) the periphery ((i.c.
outlying areas in the Soviet Union)).

((It was decided that 'You will)) receive only military clothing;
civilian clothes are nothing for you; you do not work with agents
(agentura), and if you do work ((with agents)), you go ((for such
work)) only rarely™.

Those who work agalnst foreigners, against an embassy, those fellows
were permitted tq receive civilian clothing. .

We received civilian clothes -- one time, on Rybnyy {((Street =
pereulck)), but then we were attached (prikrepili) ({for this
purpose)} to the surveillance departments (po otdelam sleczhki).
And I received ({civilian clothes)) together with surveillance
{{personnel))... but, for me... here, across froa Dzerzhinskiy
{(Street}}, here, near Cherkasskiy Street (pereulok), I received
civilian clothes here.

Then, since 1953 or 1359, the question -~ may one receive, not
civiliar clothes,; but money: -~ has been resolved.

But here, the percentage ((of the increase of pay for clothing))
was small,

Here they decided... they gave ((it)) only to the fellows who know

a ((foreign)) language.
They had in mind that they would dress as....

{{That they would dress)) a little better, a little better,

Beciuse, here, you understand, you go to receive civilian clothes;

"“’sgga‘gm?‘z:"
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your rank, not on the position (dolzhmost®'), but the ramk, and..,

in fact, the material which the colonels, licutcnant colonels

received (Kﬁas)) godd}-but {{for persons of ranks)) up to {({licutenant

coloacl and%cblonel))... the naterial {((vas)) not very géod.

¥hen we received the naterial, it was proposed, a suit every year,
shoes,.a shift every year, a coat (pal'to) every two years,

But the naterial you receive, you would not weaf it, the quality is
S0 poor.

Usually, they sold it.

They put ((it)) in the comnission store (v Xomissionku) and sold ((it})

And so you sell {({it)) and have clothing made, of course, of hetter
material of better quality.

But since about 1938 I recceived only nmoney.

Approximately how much did they pay ({(for clothing)) for a year.

Oh, this depends upon, you see, let us suppose ((that}) I received..,.

vhen... the last time... something, I was working in the Seventh
Departnent (Otdel) in later (poslednyye) years... 1362 or 1983; I
could have received, for the coat, for both suits, altogether, but

this ((would have been)) approxinately 500 rubles, in new currency.
500 rubles:.

450-460 rubles. !

Approximately when did they change the identifications (udostovereniye)“

of the MVD to {(those of)) the XGB:

¥hen did they begin to change them.

But the KGB... was organized in 1955 or the end of 1954,
I also do not remember ((this)) date exactly.
And they began gradually to change the identifications.

On this point (Zdes'), how did they ((i.e., the nmew identificatiomns))

—SEBREF—
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. B. Red,

Again, the seal (gerb), ({thc inscription:)) Comnittece for State

Security under the CM USSR ((S4 SSSR - Sovict Ministrov SSSR -

_Council of Ministers of the USSR)).
Inside, ((it is)) the saone, hut ((the inscription is)) not the MDD,

but the Ministry for State Security (linisterstvo Gosbe:zopasnosti).

A, And it is written the sanc:

B. With the exception only that the words ({were}) not “lUinistry of
Internal Alfairs", Lut ‘Committee for State Sccurity under the
Council of Ministers of the USSR”.

A, 1t also per.iited the bearing of weapons.

B. Yes, weapons, also,.

A, T%ho signs the identifications.

. B. Here, you sce, it depends then on ({(one's)) official position

i {dolzhnostnoye polozheniye).

i

; A, Take {{(as an example)): a junior, senior....
% B, Case officer.

§ The chief of a department (6tdel).... of the Directorate (upravleniye) P “%;
’ a g
i now,... of Personnel signs, or the Deputy Chief of the Personnel '

Directorate signs.

[FENPPIUR Y S

B. ((For)) a section (otdeleniye) Chief, a section chief signs, the o

-

Chief of the Directorate, yes, the Chief of the Personnel Directoratg%“

e
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{(signs)) for the chief of a section.

But a section chief has a better identification, such,... up to ({the

..\...SEE iEI.. o - :




‘identification)), tacn from ((the position of)) section chie?
{{one nas 2)) leather ((-tound identification)).

Tetter quality.

A section caief, the deputy chicf of a2 department, n departaent

i
i

<
L oaeds
o dutdd

chief, c¢tc., ({(have)) such identifications certificates, sturdy-
lookin;, but little darker red. : i

If it is of iorocco -~ ((it is)) poor, a bright red; but this ((other

[EECD SRR e RO g

onec is)) darker ({red)). ‘ : 3
Hell, i; loolts =ore sturdy, the identification itself, nmore durable,
the leather ((is)) good,

Then: for the scction chief, the directorate chief ({signs)) fer

the cepufy chief of a department -~ the Deputy Chairman signs.

A. Zut, vhen you entercd —- you say, in 13933 -- hy whon was your

identification sicned.

B. ({(Pause)) 1 do not remenmber, the Chief or the Deputy Chief of the

Personnel Directorate.

LT SRR

Or, then, it was the Personnel Department, and not Directo.ate,

the Personnel Department.

i A. Vell, if you received it in the beginning of your work - say, in

i
i
7

2
A
5
-3

Yarch or April.

B, It seexs that.... . =

I remenber, I remember, ¥ rcemember -- ((it was)} ZAPOLOINYY.
! A, VWho ((is)) this ZABOLOTINYY.

B. Colonel ZABOLOTKYY; he worked in Personnel.

Deputy Chief of the Personnel Directorate or Department, ZABOLOTNYY.
In 1954, they made him chief of the Second Special Department o
{Spetsotdel) in place of KARASEV,

They removed KARASEV, who had been Chief of the Second Special .

XS By
[ RNV VP

Departnent == audio'penetration (podslushivaniye) for many years:

SEARET | D
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abou 1960 . v . ey
Froa 1960 ((onward)), he wored (rabotayet) in the Border
as Chicf of the Political Directorate.

But why did they transfer him to political work.

¥nat ~- he ({is)) a political worker {politrabotnik).

In gencral, he ({is)) a political worker.
He had workcd, generally speaxing, somewhere in the Central Committee
{((TsX = Tsentral'nyy Komitet)): a Party worker.

Grigoriy Ivanovich ZABOLOTHYY .

And the identification vas signed by him at this tine.

By ZABOLOTNYY.

And you had this identification until what tine.

¥ell, they changed ((them)).

They changed this first identification, them they changed {{then))
to the KGB. )

Then, it, this identification was changed a few times in the KGB.
For what reason was it changed:

For a period.,. it ({was)) given (ukazan) a'definite:perlod
{opredelennyy srok).

The certificate ((was)) valid for such-and-such a period.

That 1t was given for two years, so.

But what if a person were a lieutenant and ({(then)) a senior

liéutenant, then a colonel?

In this case, you have the right: you give your Personnmel man, who.

kS

is in the Second Chief Directorate (Glavk), the usual necessary

—SEGREF——
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({(this)) == I was a case offICer; now I ((am)) a senior case officer”. &

A. Anddid you change {((your identification}).

3
=

PSS, o

B. Yell, there, after a zonth, two ooaths, a month apd a half, tvwo

{
weeks, it is changed. é
{((Tais is)) also ((the case with changcs of)) ran':. ;
Yhen your rank changes, you go to the Personnel man, give ((him)) a
photo. ;
¥ell, another time, you co not hurry there —- ((it is changed)) E
afiter several nonths; so.
A. VYhen you were leaving there, let us say, in 1352 or 1964, vho was
Deputy Chief of the Porsonnel OJirectorate or Chief of the Personnel
Directorate.
B. I have written the whole layout... to my thinking... ((it was)) VA... é
VASIL'YEV {({Speaks with uncertainty.)). f
&, But where did this {(person)) cozme from (ottuda payavilsya):
B. I knoow only this thing about VASIL'YEV: he then was working, he
was for some years, he was Secretary of the Party organization of
the Third Directorate.
; That is, he worked in the Third Directorate, and I dg not know what . .
: he was doing. ;

Then they elected him Secretary of the Party organization of the

Third Directorate.

He worked as Secretary of the Party organization of the Third
Directorafe.

¥hether he was in the re-eclections for two or three years, 1 do

not know.

From the Third Directorate Party work,Ahe received a promotion, and

i

they took him, well, into Personnel, into Personnel of the First

%thNaunminmemmumwwlmmnM1mo%nmL
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‘ ((First Chief)) Directorate; he headed the Personnel Group (gruppa)

under the Directorate... of the First ((Cnief),ADircctorate.

[ SO —

A, WVWhat &ind of pronmotion is tinis.

{((To head)) a Personnel Group. :

B, I do not know.

A. The Party organiz.tiom of such a large directoerate, but then Chief

of the Personnel Section {(Otdeleniye) or Group.

B. Well, in the First ((Chief)) Directorate, greater sipnificance

attaches to Personnel.
A, Vhatever great significance would attach...

B. W%ell, I know that he was taken from the Third Directorate, from ((the
position)) of Secretary of the Party organization of the Third
Directoratz, he was taken into Personnel in the First ((Chief))

Directorate.

I
1

o :«,m'.*;:’.;

From Personnel of the First ((chief)) Directorate, he was trans- E
ferred soon to Central Personnel as Deputy Chief of the {(Personnel))
Directorate, but then they made him Chief of the ((Personnel))

Directorate.
A. But who was his deputy. S

: B. Now... his deputy now {(is)) KUZ'MIN.

,§ He became First Deputy ({(Chief)) EUZ'MIN not long ago.

o ' He became First Deputy ((Chief)) around 1962.

Before this, he o= KUZ'MIN -- was chief of a department (otdel) in
Central Personnel.

Yes, about 1962. .

The Chief of the First Department of Personnel took his place (Vmesto

nego stal).

TRRL y hsme b
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. assigned to outlying districts Eh the USSR)) =~ was ((headed by))

And then, where ((are they))

(rukovodyashchiye), Central Personncl, Central Personnel.
Zut another departuent there —- ((resboﬁsible for)ﬁ let us séy,

the peripheral personnel (periferiynyye xadry) ({(i.c., personnel {

this KUZ'4IN. '
¥aji Gen NAYUMUSHIN was for a timc;;heforc VASIL'YEV, Chief of the : {
Personnel Directorate,... .
SVBTLICHHYY, present Chief of the Directeorate {{of the KGB)) for

Hoscow and loscow Oblast, worked in Personnel at one tine.
But from where did he come in loscow.

I do not know where he canc fron.

I know, the first time I heard about hina ({it was)) that SVETLICHxYY
{(had worked)) in Personnel, as a Persounnel nan.

Yes, and ({(tnat)) he wvas NAYUUSHIN's caief, to my thinking... he,
NAYMUSHIN was Chief, and he was Deputy ((Chief{).

NAYHUSIHIN went to Central Asia, as Chairman of the KGB in Uzbekistan;
here, SVETLICIANYY became ({(Chaief}) for some tine.

Then, SVETLICINYY was taken into the Directorate {({of the KGRE))... ]
for Moscow City and Moscow Oblast -~ there were two: for Hoscow City,
and for Hoscow Oblast; he reccived ((tae rank of)) major general
while in Personnel.

I do not know where he vworlied before this.

Let us return for a minute, agzain, to the entrances (pod'yezd) to
Building 12.
Well, is there one entrance on Dzerzhinskiy Street (ulitsa); or how

many of them are there on Dzerzhinskiy Street.

On Dzerzhinskiy Street, ((there is)) only the entrance (vkhod) to
the Club.

PSR 1
 da s i e Lol el ;

Thefe are no more entrances (pod"yezd) {((on Dzerzhinskiy Street)}..
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entrance (pod"yeid) ((is)) there.

A. The second eantrance.

‘3
=
k:;‘é

Yhich, what -~ it leads to the Gastronoz

B. No; the second entrance ({is)) next to the Gastronon. N

Hoxt to the Gastrononz.
A.  But vhere is the cntrance (vkhod) to the Gastronon ) !

.B. This ((is)) tac entrance (vihod), scperate (saao soboy), and there,
next to the Gastronon...
The entrancsz to the Gastronon, sec... Irom Dzerzhinskiy Street, and
the entrance to the Gastronom is froa... acre, this, here ((is))
the through-street (proycnd), as it is called, between Building 12
and DBuildine 2, ((there is)) also an extrance (vithod).
Two entrances.

Fronm Dzerzhinskiy Street and an cntrance from here. §

A. {(In affirpnation of understandinc)) Uauh. A
But what was (nakhodilosg') at Entrance No. 2 (pod"yezd nomer 2)- g

B. At Tntrance Ko, 2.
Wnich depart=ents (otdel), vhich elenents (podrazdeleniye) were
there (sideli)}.
The Dorder Troops =-- on which floor I co dot know; I was at Entrance s
Ko. 2 only in the section (otdeleniye) concerning the Archives ) ' 5
{(arkhiv).
Vhen I went abroad, before the trip abroad, I looked at the exit
files (vyyezdnoye delo) on the members of the group with which‘l

wvas going.

A. Since when have the Archives been located there:

B. I knovw that it is located there, right there, now.
This ((is)) a part (chast') of the Archives.




e A part of the Archives. =
" Specifically, 1 personally was only... in... 1 loo%ed at the eiifl
files. |
And I saw Border Troops (morranichnik) there; in CDorder Troops

uniforz.

A, Let us zo ((on)) to the third entrance (pod'yezd).

2

3

‘g

3

1 i
3

-3

B. I necver wvas at ((i.e., used)) the third cntrance.

I do pot know vhat is there, _ 3
A, V¥ell, how...:

B. No; ({sait)) one nminute.

I was (byl) at the third cntrance, I was (sidel) at the third

entrance, I went a few tinmes; Lt Gen BEL'CHENXO was ({there)), he

headed, Lt Gen BIL'CHENKZO was Chief of the Third Special Department

(Spetsotdel), now, the Third Special Department, yes.

This ({is)) the department which prepared various documents,

Well, ((if)) you need sone kind of cover (krysha), cover {prikrytive)

or to have a document ({showing}) that you ({are)} a member of the : é
% Organization of Journalists or that you work in the Ministry of E' ‘-5

Culture, and.,. a false passport (pasport fal shivyy), this

departaent prepared everything.

A, Vhat was this department called earlier:

Tt BB e 4

B. °The Third Special Department.
‘A. ¥ell, let us take ((for example)), in 19537

'B. The Third Special Department in 1953.
This ({is)) the Third Spécial Department.
I wrote a paper addressed to (na imya) the Chief of the Third
Special Department, Lt Gen BEL'CHENKO, to the Chief of the Third

—SEORET—
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A. PBut until it became ({the Third Special Dgpartmént));.. vhat wasAit

called- b

B. I do not know. L ;
I do not know what it was called. ‘ ;
Now it is part of (('in the systen” -~ v sisteme)) the OU —- the
Opcrational—chhﬁical Directorate {(Operativno-Tekhnicheskoye

Upravleniye).
A. Let us go ({(on)) to the fourth ((entrance)).

B. The fourth.
At this entrance, then, {(thcre are)}) the chiefs (ruiovodstvo), the
ciniefs of the Second Special Department and a part of the Second
Special Department; telephones w- "Jarusya"™ - it all {(i.e., the
wvhole part)) is {sidit) hnere, audio penetration (podslushivaniye).
Then, here, now, now, ihe chiefs of the Operational~Technical b
Directorate, the OTU, are here.

Here ((is)) the Sixth Speccial Department, formerly the Sixth

§ {(Special Department)), now, also the Sixth Department of the OTU;

this ({is for)) censorship {{(perlustration = perlustratsiyva)) of

correspondence. . ..,

Here....
A, Let us go ((on)) to the fifth ((entrance)).

B. I never was at the fifth ((entrance}).

To my thinking, ((it is)} closed, and... there is not entrance

{vkhod) there.
The fifth, this, see... just as you go in from Malaya Lubyanka
{(Street)), Malaya Lubyanka, you go through a little courtyard

here == which I have said already, closed off (ogoro;hep) 80, by

PEFCINN

a high iron grille, ((there is)) a free entry ((i.e., a pass is not

necessary in order to gain access to the courtyard through the sﬁall

~<SERE
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: So, the fifth, here, around the corner, ((is)) closecd snd, to ny .

thinkins, I never went there.

The sixth ({entrance)), there, straignt-away tae sinth (pryazo

|

shestoy)... the sixnth cntrance, then; the FINO ((Finance Departacnt --

Finansovyy Otdel)) ({is)) herec.

A. And the seventh ((entrance)).

e et 2 o 80§

B. The seventh; to my thinkinz, 2 part of Personncl also is (sidif)
here, a part of Personnel is at the seventh; the-Planning Department
(Planovyy Utdel) is there..; yes, ({(and)) the HOB Departaent is
somevhere here, here is the Mobilization Department (Mlobilizatsionnyy
Otdel), not al; ((of it)).

The chiefs (rukovodstvo) ({(are)) in the New Building now....

And that is all.

A. Vell, and the cighth ((entrance)).

B. ({((At)) the eighth, as I say, ({is)) the Party Committee (Parthkom).

A. You always insist that you saw ROZHENKO there, at the eighth-

B, At the eighth, yes.
4. For yvour information, he never was (ne sidel) there. - : C ;

B. He was, .
((It is)) another matter, vhat ((came)}) later; later == I do not
remenber the year -- he was taken into Personnel of the First

Directorate. | ' L

"A, Vhere he was taken is not important.
But the Personnel Department (Otdel Kadrov) was never at the_éighthvh f

entrance.

W
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Especially in 12333, ((when)) they invited you there, ctc., none of

the Personnel people were at the eighth entrance.
On the sixth floor, on the sixth floor.

It is interesting for ne, of course, to hear that vou insist ((upon
this)}, but it is impossible for nme to belicve this, [{since)) it

vas not ((sq)).

I do not know, I do not iinow.

I an telling you what (itak) I remenmber and where I vas,

Perhaps it was at another entrance.

You sinply have forgotten:

No, no, no, no.
This cannot be.

This is the farthermost (krayniy) entrance, the very farthest

entrance, there where the dietetic restaurant (Dietstolovaya) ((is)),

where the library ({is)).
Vhere is the ninth entrance.

The ninth, I do not know wvhere.

The ninth entrance.

Is there a ninthv

ThereAis.

I do not know the ninth.

I do not know.

¥hat (kak) do you think.

You have worked there so nuch time, and so forth.

SR

1
|
3l
B
T

i
;
!
i
H

iz AN - o
* B

. otar




BT R

o.

I do not now way I do not &knovw.

is there one ((i.e., 2 ninth entrance)).

There is.

I do not know, I do not know; I was not ((there)).
You must know vhere it ({(is)) and vhat ((is)) therec.

I do not Lknow.

Is it that you consider the ninth entrance {({to be that of))} the

Directorate ({of tae ilGD)) for loscow and loscow Oblast nore

currcntly.

This building ((of that Dircctorate is)) under a conpletely different

number, and they are next to....

They are neir ((each other)), they are attached.

Nearby, but it has another number.

And it has its ({own)} entrance.

The entrance from Lubyanka ((Street)).

From lalaya Lubyanka.

¥here the ninth ((is located)}, or....

1 do not know, I do not know; the ninth I do not know.

If you know all the rest, the others, what reason, why can you not

tell ((about)) the ninth.

Because I do not know if it exists, whether there is one; and if

there s one, then I never was there, and I do pnot know where

CECR EL

it is

LT,

RN U VS RS S P

g <

Ch e o e

i




oo Gnts s cmat

B vl

A.

A person tho has vorlied ((tiere)) 11 years can in no vay niss 1£;§.

I do not now.
I do not “now nore.

{((Therc are}) no entrances of any :ind here.

You could not in any way have naissed. ...

I do nof-inow, I do not mnow.

However it ~oes, however it twists, you willd nxXhing {((i.e., you
cannot chante the facts)), hecnuse it exists nnd people o there

every day.

((Laushs)) VWell, chere is it.

Yhere is it.
In Building 12,

In Building 12, look!
Here are four ({entrances)): it ends with the fourth; around the
corner, the entrance (vkihod) from the courtyard == here ((21s0))

are four: the fifth is closed =~ 1 never was there == the sixth,

seventh, cighth; there, tuat is all. ) . o

Ye can tallk this way for a long time, but I an inclined to say again

that you nust think up seomthing rore substantial or more truthful.

Do you want me to think up something for you, or to tell the truth

as I know ((it)):

Speaking of the eighth entrance, speaking of the seventh entrance,

speaking of the ninth entrance and speaking of the f£ifth entrance, ~ ™=

if you worked ((there)) 11 years, you must know ((them)) as ((you

T

MRS o AN B e e S Y

i gty ot




M S UL J ) had e Adsayvallg e semasw  mas s Thy  wmmes g - e Lo LTI .
g PR - 3 R 4 . g

P g

A.

L,

>

I 22 tolling you what I %know, wvhen and what cntrances I used
{vithodil ... vykhodil),.

I do not know another entrance.

Y¥hat do you thinl: (ial:r Vy schitayete); what conclusion nmust I nake,

when tic ninth entrance ecxists....

{({(Interrupts)) I do not now vhere it is.

...And a nwaber of eclexments {podrazdelenive) vhich work very closely
with the Sccond Chief Dircctorate are there, and an caployee vwho
rorized there 11 years does not xnow about this.

I have enuserated for you all cntrances of 3Building 12 wvhich....
The problem is that that is not all ((of the entrances)).

And I see no basis, if you know all the rest, more or less, ((for))
why you do not tell ({(about)) the ninth.

I do not know the ninth.

I told you that I do not know.

Well, how can you pose the question so

I certainly am not ({just))posing ({a question}}. .

It exists.

One can in no way (ni kak, pi kuda) throw it out.

I do not know, I do not know, I do not know.

There it is wr;ttén, in white on black or black on white, "Entrance

No. 9%,

I do not know Entrance 9.
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you in the Moscow Oblast ((XGB building)).

In the Luildin~ itself

B. About two tines, probahly, or three.

A, In the zhole 11l years, only about .two or tareec tines.

. e .
et bl S B Fbens o

B. Yes.

A.  And how many times during your 11 years of work did you pass by along
Yalaya Lubyznka ((Strcet)).

Froma its ((the street's)) berinning to its end.

B. It would seenm (i{alx budto by) I did so (proihodil) a few tines, of

course.
A. VWell, "a few times", this is a loose idea {ponyatoye rastyazhimoye). ;
After 11 years, to say "a few times™, this is almost ({as if to say

you}) were not ({there)) at all.

; B. I passed by a few times, but I did not count how many times. é

I did not have to, there was no need to pass along the whole of
Halaya Lubyanka {({Street)) often.

I went, by the way, in 1953, I often went to Lubyanka, but... I
went via Malaya Lubyvanka. ) . 3
¥hy '

é I had a certain safe apartment (konspirativnaya kvartira) when I
began to work in 19533; this K/K No. 7 was on Markhlevskiy Stregt
(ulitsa); it is parallel to Lubyanka. '

R ' : One could go along Markhlevskiy Street then, but I went along....

3.
sl in: Al e e

A. ({(Interrupts)) ¥Well, we have enough time ((to-talk)) about this
apartment No. 7 and Markhlevskiy Street.

i Cﬁn‘you briefly explain to me -~ begin from Malaya Lubyanka, straight

'ﬁ' from Building 12 and up —- vhat vas there: | o




A it ranbe
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Let us finish with Puilding 12; further, the 'oscow Oblast ((KG3

buildin~z)), bezins....

Opposite, opposite, ((is)) a2 noteworthy place, here, opposite the

Catholic church (kostel).

So; vwhat is before (pered) the church.

Some kind of low buildiny -- two floors, to ny thinking.

Vhat is located there in it, what special ((thing)).

I do not now of anythin- special.

i never was there.

To ny thinking, our houssieeping and supply offices (khozyaystve}
were there: of the LVD-IG2,

Further, let us go ((on)) :teyond the church.

The usual buildings (Obycanyy dom); I never went there to even one

of them....

On the left, on the right.

... Either on the left, ((or)} on the gight.
Kothing special.

¥othing special, noteworthy.

.;. There is pothing notevorthy.

Ko.
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You know, if I worked there ¥or quite a2 lensth of time and you worked

{(there)) 11 years, I also had no special reason ¢o £o alons thi§
street == let us say I did ((this)) two tinecs less, S0 =- Hut, og
the bhasis of what I saw and v/iat I know, it secems to nme ({that))
you nust i:now morc than I, cspecially ((concerninc)) more recent

tines.

e ot s e b 5
o

Because in 11 years, not only in the vway of wori: and cases, bhut
sinply because it happened so (tal: nozhet byt'), I rode along,

wallted along {((this street)).

B. Xot nccessarily.,
1t ({is just)) an alley {{ dead end"” = tupichek}), a little
through-street {pcreulochek), ilalaya Lubjyankia; if one has to go on

Malaya Lubyanka, then only (XG).

A, ...This alley, etc.; it is alongside the KGB and Zuilding 2 and

Building 12 and ({(the building of the XG3 for)) loscow Oblast and....

B, ({Interrupts)) Well, and what of such (chto zh takogo) (XG)... it

is not necessary for you....

A. Each XGB employee knows all of these buildings as ((he knows his own))

g s ety

st B s o -

fingers,

That ((they are)), for what, where.

B. What I needed to know, I knew, . ]

A. ¥hy can you not explain this.

B. I have explained to you.

K
3
k|
1

¥hat I needed to know, I knew; I am explaining to you.

A. And again the question: how ({do you)) explain why (chto) you

e

cannot correctly say where the Personnmel Directorate is situated, -

R R N A N L

bR

({why)) you cannot say that it is at the fifth entrance (pod-yezd),
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((can do)) so about other entrances.

I nust say that a part of vhat vou have said is the truth, as it

concerns 1353, approxziaately.

Understand ({(ne)); how ({is it that)) you do hot understand; you

are working in Central (Tscntral'nyy) Building 2, I am working in
uildinz 2, so, fhere in the Old Building; do I go nuch, often, to
"the New Building.

Oy, oV, Oy, Oy, OY:

Very rarcly.

For wvhat is it nccessary for mec to go to Zuilding 12,

If it was necessary for me to go to the Party Committee (Partkoa),
I went to the Party Committee; if it was pecessary for ne {((to go))
to Personnel -- it was not necessary for me to go to Personnel; no
one phoned me; there was no need whatsoever for me to go to Personnel.
there did I ro.

I went to the sixth entrance in Building 12 ~- this is FINO; there,

they receive money and they write out travel documents there =- I

O P

went there.
How. ;
But, there is the éighth == the Party Comnittee of the Komsomol

((i.e., the Zomsomol Committee, although B says, 'Partkom Komsomola™)),

vhen I went in 1953-34, then, the Party Party Committee {{(i.e., the
Party Committee; B thus distinguishes it -- "Partkom Xomsomnol®)}).
So, now, ((I went)) to the fourth entrance most often, because ((I)Y'
had (prikhodilos*') to give assignments (zadaniye) to the Second
Special Department, to the Sixth Special Department -~ ({I went))
here often.

1 vas at theréecond,entrance a féw times —- tais ((was)) about two
or three before ((my)) departure abroad; ({(that is)) all.

There was no further necessity ({(for me)) to go to Bdilding 12,
Absolutely nome.

You say that you went to the Operational Equipmenf Directorate : T
{(Upravleniye Operativmoy Tekhniki) ({i.e., the Operational-Technical

SO
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WS ( (4 0. /- the ‘Operational-Technical Directorate, OTU)), and so,

B.

A,

A.

Yes,

If you went there, often zave ({(tiaen)) assignoents, cte., thon how
-2
do you cxplain that you do not inow General SAVCIENIIO, Ivan

Tikhonovich; how do you explain this
I do not now, I do not kno<r SAVCHINUIO,

I do not sce any basis, iI you linow, there is no sense and no basis

{{for rou)) not to tal: absut this.

I ¢o not iinovw.

I ((just)) row said: I went....
He is not decad; he was there, he is there.

{{vait)) one minute.

I am telling you {(that)) I went to the Second Special Department;'
to vhom did I give assignments.

¥ell, the first year, 19533 -- to KARASEV, personally to the Chief
of the Second Special Department; then, later, to ZABOLOTRYY.

To the Sixth Special Departnent =-- to SHCHIKOCHIKHIN, to SHCHIXCCHIXHIN
To whon else... well, you go, in the Second Special Department, to
"Marusya", YANICHEV, BORISENKO, you go to these ((pe}sons)).
({That is)) ali.

In 1962-63, I went a few times to PATRUKHIN... from the chiefs of
the OTYU; {({that is)}) all.

To whom.else did I go:

(2G)

For our next coaversation, I want you to think a little'abqut
these questions of which we have talkéd today.

I consider it a direct necessity to return again to them,

) .
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B.

A,

‘But I have told you only that which I remember.

Pleasge, - B e

atre o g,

I taink that we tried very harg to irntroduce order in the questions
and answers, but I do not see that you {(In EZnglish:)) clear up

everything.
Too bad (YNaprasno), too bad.

I consider that you --= despite some truthfulness in your statenents,
in the testimony which you ¥ive, ete. == are ipclined, anyway, for
some reason unknown to me ((not to tell the {:uth)) -= citiaer you
are not telling the truth or you do not know ({(the answers to))
those questions which one would know ({(how to)) answer just like

taat ((Snaps fingers))....
((Interrupts)) That which I know, I answer.

... Without any hesitation.

In addition, you make ((what)), in your view, perhaps, it seems,
((are)) small mistakes, but in ny view == Qery large ({oneg)) ==
when, for example, you say ((that)) ROZHENKO ((was)) at the eighth i

entrance, where he never was (gde on nikogda ne sidel).

I do not know.

I saw the Personnel man (kadrovik) only at the eightﬁ {(entrance)).

I would not want our more or less friendly conversation to change to
a stronger course {ruslio).

I would consider it useful that you -think ((about this)). ' : CE

.

I have told you that, you See what —— you already put the question
so (tak)... absolutely not believing....

Well, I cannot....

A oo 4 o

¥hat I know, I tell (XG).

I

P

2
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is to help you and to help my colleagues ln sone measure, though :
they arc fully convinced and have their {({own)) correct opinion.

I think {schitat') that you should think in genefal about that

1 -
;

position in which you find yourseclf (nakhodit'sya).

And when we talk about ((some)) questions, if they ((i.e., the j

Libmat oo

apswers)) are not known to you, it will be much sinpler to say that

%

"I was not therc and I do not know than to drag in, or to do
something like that, your {{own)) conclusions, such as: "I imagine”
or "I think'.

Everyone can imagine and can lie...

put that is the reason; you asi ne, but I tell you that I do not

know, but I imagine so... thus.
Decause imagination sopnetimes can misinform (dezinformirovat').

Sc, I ecmphasized to you: "It is my imagination” (2G)... ((at)) !
this moment, when I have explaihed it to you, I have said that I g ,}

do not know exactly, I can only say "imagination”.

One cannot, for example, believe =~ if a person has worked ({(there})
1! years and knows that he began ({work)) im 1953; 5 person who has
worked there cannot say that, at the eighth entrance, he was in the

Personnel Department, which never was there ({(at the ecighth entrance)).

Well, if 1 went, ((if)) I had these conversations there.,... v 1
Before my entrance (postupleniye} ({on duty)), precisely ({at that
time of entrance on duty)), and ((even)) ndw a paft {chast') 6f s

Personnel is there, it is (sidyat) ((there)).
¥hat - théy did not want to let you in the Persomnel Department
and 2 Personnel man went to the Party Committee (Partkom) or the

Komsomol . ..

{(Interrupts)) Lord, deliver ((me)); Lord, deliver ((me)); I even
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. agreement and find a common language;

because I saw the office (rabochaya obstanovka), I saw {(that)) - ":ig-~'
4 or 3 officers sit in the office, they have mpers on the desk..
what. . ,

No {(that was no“ the casec}).

I think that we will stop on this ((point)) today. ‘

I think we will meet again.

I would likzc to say only one ({thing)).

That my, it was, it was my sincere wish to say, hiding nothing....

((In Zaglish)) Well,

between us, it seems not conpletely so to nme,

Dut for me... therec is no reason ¢f apy kind to hide something or

to conceal something such.
{{(XG -~ A and B speak at the same time))

..If one has absolutely no reason of any kind, or if there are such i

reasons, I would like to hear these reasons,

Really, for me there is absolutely no reason of any kind, no wish

of any kind to tell you lies (nepravdu) and to hide something.

But after our conversation of today, the first, I can tell you
straight out ((that it is)) ny 1mpression that you probably must )

think very, very much before we really. will come to a common.

Because I have come not {({just}) to spend time and not to busy myself
wvith nonsense.

I do not want to say that what you sald today is nonsense or iies,

etc.; a part of what yoﬁ said today, etc., is the truth gnd

absolutely no one will deny it.

IR WL, TN

But a number of moments of which you have spoken, etc., one cannot
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B, fou are frec to have any opinion.

- % .hég

A, I want to say that if you say, 'You arc free*, etc., of course, I

i

. . |

am free, but I do not want to think this way {tak), as I want.... S
!

]

S Cded o pha ettt

B, ({(Interrupts)) I do not want you to think....
{(3G; A and B speak at the same time.))

A, I( we ((have)), for example, somewvhere a question arises, a question
arises, etc., some kind of nisunderstanding, as, say, with regard
to the Personnel Dzpartment or with SAVCHENIO there and others, etc.,
I would wish that the person who has worked in !loscow in the Organs
of the KGB, as he says, for 1l years, would give me a more or less

plausible explanation, ((other)) that that which he has given ne,

B, VWe are at the greatest impasse,.

PN TRESURE Y P TR

e e
e

A, As I said, it ({is)) so¢ simple.

We can continue our conversation for quite a2 long time and I can ~%

tell you directly that I am here, really, I want to establish the
% truth.
¥here there is a lie or for some reason you have fougqlit necessary
to say other than what you wish or {(other than))} what is ({so)})

i % in fact, you can, without any fear, say that.... - A AR

((XG; A and B speak at the same time.))

...Where you are inclined to be in such a position, as ((that in

vhich)) you began today, and not give more or less plausible f i

explanations on a number of questions, I think that....

({(XG; A and B speak at the same time.))

FEN .
'
X W |
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A.

Br-regou-think—(schitat*ythat I have-Tied to you;

Good-~by .

telling you the truth, then why do you talk with ne.

If you think so.

"I already have cmphasized that nuch of what you have said is

i
plausible. :
Well, so == I have not lied (sovrat') to you, I have not lied

{(solpat'}; not at all,
Too bad you are this way (¥aprasno Vy takj.

Well, what, then.

I think it is not necessary to be upset (nervnichat’'), to take

offense, etc.

¥hat offense.

((XG; A an¢ B speak at tl:2 same time.)})

I you really are inclined....

I really ({(am so)) inclined, and I really wanted....

...Some kind of help, that I would help clean up this case (delo),
in which there is so much dirt, etc.

I think that you must thinz ((about this)) today and decide.

Perhaps you yourself will begin to tell another story (tema) tomorrow. . gw;

Good-by .

" abso- g ot

'((End of Reel #2; End of Session #1))






